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Financial Highlights

MBERE

Annual result for the year ended 31 March 2018 BEZZ-NF=A=+-HLEFEXHE
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Annual results for the year ended 31 March 2018 BE_Z-)/N\F=A=+—RHLFEZXRA
¢ Revenue o U2 HK$584.7 million 584.7 BEETT
o Profit before income tax o [ FT1S B A HK$53.6 million 53.6 B & BT
e Shareholders’ fund as at 31 March 2018 RZE—\F=ZA=+—HREES HK$479.2 million 4792 BBAETT
* Basic earnings per share o GRREAE T HK7.36 cents 7.3678 1l
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —T—+tF
Revenue (HK$'000) = (FET) 584,720 505,981
Operating profit (HK$'000) ﬁ“‘%’*xﬁ*' (F&7T) 54,380 50,789
Profit before income tax (HK$'000) FRETS BRI &R (FA7T) 53,582 50,403
Profit attributable to shareholders (HK$’000) R R G R T (FA&TT) 44,194 42,307
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FIREARHEF GBI 7.36 7.04
Interim dividend per share declared and paid (HK cents) B 5 k&S &R HIEE GBL) 1.0 1.5
Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents) B TRREIRE GBI 2.5 2.5
Net asset value (HK$’000) BEFE(TET) 479,211 431,864
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Chairman’s Statement TEREE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual report for the year ended 31
March 2018.

The global economy is witnessing vibrant growth yet expecting the
unexpected outcomes of international political and trade disputes.
More importantly, the recent trade war between the United States
(the US) and the Peoples’ Republic of China (the PRC) would create
uncertainty and risk on Hong Kong economy and there is no sign
that both countries may come to a compromise to resolve the
dispute. Undoubtedly, Hong Kong companies that manufactured
goods in the PRC will be caught in the crossfire, those in the business
of supply chain management, re-export and transhipment business
would suffer a great loss given that Hong Kong is the world’s fifth
largest container port; and Hong Kong’s tourism industry would
suffer collateral damages as the economy of the PRC would
inevitably be slowing down and the PRC’s RMB is expected to sag
against the US dollar towards the end of this year. Together with the
expected interest rate hike in the US, it casts doubt over the
momentum of economic growth in Hong Kong for the rest of this
year.

The introduction of Pan Pearl River Delta Region (PRD) co-operation
policy in the PRC’s 13th Five-Year-Plan aimed at transforming the
Pan PRD from the factory of the world into the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macau innovative hub. Its objective is to integrate and promote
the cooperation among the nine cities in Guangdong Province, Hong
Kong and Macau. The policy encourages and facilitates Hong Kong
people to do business in this region and the Hong Kong Government
is optimistic about the opportunities for participating in the Initiative.
It would be an engine of growth for Hong Kong in the next decade.
However, as the US’s trade war against the PRC targets largely the
high technology sector, it would affect the implementation of the
initiative, namely, the transformation of PRD into a high tech
innovative region (that modelled on the San Francisco Bay Area).
There is always a high risk of investing in any business at the time of
political and economic uncertainty.
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The US interest rate is on the rising track. Hong Kong's close
economic relationship with the PRC and currency linkage to the US
dollar has caused the local economy, especially the housing market,
sensitive to the external environment. In Hong Kong, according to
Government statistics, the economy has expanded by 4.7% GDP in
real terms in the first quarter of 2018 and the business sentiment is
generally optimistic (without taking the impact of the China-US trade
war into consideration). It is expected that the trade war will drive
the percentage of GDP growth down.

In view of the above, the coming financial year would be a
challenging year, we cautiously implement business strategies with
reference to distinctive market trends such as the dominance of
small-sized housing and inclination of design-oriented products.
Despite occasional fluctuations, the housing supply in the primary
market is gradually on an upward trend. The dual features of
accommodation as a necessity and investment tool make the housing
shortage a complicated challenge. External factors such as interest
rate hikes and trade wars may result in a considerable response in
the market. (Note: The housing initiatives announced in end June
2018 show the Government’s determination in boosting housing
supply of citizens and the results are yet to be verified.) The
secondary market is subject to the dynamics of the primary market.

Our product mix has been adjusted to cope with these trends. We
capitalise our experience in the industry over the past 40 years and
the collaborative relationship with property developers, architects
and designers to expand our presence in the project sales as well as
to strengthen the retail performance.

We have kept and will continue to keep vigilant to market
fluctuations and maintained the disciplined approach in operation
and expansion. The current and quick ratios were 2.7 (2017: 2.8)
and 1.6 (2017: 1.7) respectively. We shall continue to closely
observe market trends, capitalise on our strengths and adjust our
strategies accordingly.

The management would like to thank you for the support and trust of
shareholders, as well as the loyalty and efforts of our dedicated staff.
Their contributions have been indispensable for the Group’s
development during the past years, and its prospects for the years to
come.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry

Chairman
27 June 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the importing, wholesale,
retail and installation of architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom,
kitchen collections and furniture in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

A business review of the Group and an analysis of the Group’s
performance using financial key performance indicators during the
year are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis. In
addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance and an account of the Group’s key relationships with its
employees, customers, suppliers and others that have a significant
impact on the Group and on which the Group’s success depends are
provided in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the
Annual Report 2018.

Details of the Company’s compliance with the code provisions set
out in the Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) are provided in the Corporate Governance Report of the
Annual Report 2018. Save as disclosed herein, during the year ended
31 March 2018, the Company has complied with the requirements
under the Listing Rule, the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”) and the Cayman Islands Companies Law.

During the year, the number of residential units completed in Hong
Kong remained at high level, with small- and medium-sized flats
continuing to be the majority in the market. The demand for home
fittings increased but the market was inclined to products at
competitive prices.
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REVENUE REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group’s total turnover was
HK$584.7 million, representing an increase of 15.6% as compared

with the previous year.

Revenue by business segment

Architectural builders’ BERS  HARBREM
hardware, bathroom
collections and others

Kitchen collection and

furniture

B3 55 AR 4 S AR AR

Profitability by business segment

Architectural builders’ BRERS - HAREBMEM
hardware, bathroom
collections and others

Kitchen collection and

furniture

[ 55wt L AR 1A

Revenue from the architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom
collections and others segment increased by 21.0% to HK$434.6
million (2017: HK$359.1 million) as compared to the previous year.
Construction of small-sized residential units prevailed in the primary
residential market in the current year. The demand for products that
cater for a compact living environment and having a lower unit price

Revenue from external customers

FE 2T BBHET
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g z= Bl R
BE_Z— \FZA=Z+—HLFE AEEAZ

EFEAS847BEEBTL  BREFIEN15.6% ©
REKDEHE D 2 W

As a percentage
of sales (%)

HIHEF WS HEEEE DL (%)

31 March 31 March
=A=t+-8 =A=t-8
2018 2017 Change 2018 2017

=EB-N\F T +F 28 —T-NF T tF
HK$’000 HK$'000 (%)
THERx TET
434,565 359,071 21.0 74.3 71.0
150,155 146,910 2.2 25.7 29.0
584,720 505,981 15.6 100.0 100.0
BRERIBE D 2 BFIES
Reportable segment gross profit ~ Gross profit margin (%)
TEHRZDBER ERER (%)
2018 2017 Change 2018 2017
—B-NE —T—+fF B2y —EFE-N\E —T+F
HK$’000 HK$'000 (%)
THEx TET
171,200 133,169 28.6 39.4 37.1
68,101 78,270 (13.0) 45.4 53.3
239,301 211,439 13.2 40.9 41.8

BERS  HARBREM 2 WEREFEMN
21.0% E434.6 BBET(ZFE—+4% :359.1 B &P
TL) o FAN - —FHEMSZEBE/NREN - BE M
PREMEERRMNERFIFELA - FA - &M
BFET e glF - ME L - 2 - Malibu X FZERE
HEHEER -

continued to increase. During the year, we supplied products for
projects such as Cetus e Square Mile, Fleur Pavilia, Le Cap, Malibu

and Solaria.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

REVENUE REVIEW (CONT'D)

Revenue from the kitchen collection and furniture segment slightly
increased by 2.2% to HK$150.2 million (2017: HK$146.9 million) as
compared to the previous year. During the year, we supplied
products for projects like Cullinan West.

The overall gross profit of the Group amounted to HK$239.3 million
(2017: HK$211.4 million), representing an increase of 13.2% from
the previous year. The overall gross profit margin remained stable as
compared to the prior year.

The Group’s operating profit was HK$54.4 million (2017: HK$50.8
million), representing a rise of 7.1% from the prior year. The increase
is mainly due to a rise in turnover which the impact was partially
offset by an increase in distribution costs and administrative
expenses. The amount of administrative expenses and distribution
costs increased by 11.6% to HK$186.0 million (2017: HK$166.8
million) mainly due to a decrease in write-back of provision for
doubtful debts of HK$4.3 million, increases in staff remuneration by
HK$7.6 million and rental expenses by HK$7.4 million during the
year. We have strived hard to control costs and maintain effective
use of resources whilst keeping growth in business development.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group continues to expand its business in Hong Kong and the
PRC while adopting a prudent financial management policy. The
current ratio and quick ratio are 2.7 (2017: 2.8) and 1.6 (2017: 1.7),
respectively. Cash and cash equivalents approximated HK$62.4
million as at 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$79.7 million) and had been
utilised in purchasing inventories pending for deliveries.

Inventories increased to HK$168.5 million (2017: HK$146.1 million)
mainly because bulk project orders were placed towards the end of
the year which will be delivered to customers during the next
financial year. The trade, retention and other receivables increased
to HK$189.9 million (2017: HK$147.0 million) as a result of increase
in sales, while the trade and other payables increased to HK$51.3
million (2017: HK$43.0 million) due to inventory purchases made
towards the end of the year.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has a net cash position. Gearing
ratio is therefore not applicable (2017: same). The interest-bearing
borrowings of the Group increased to HK$41.4 million (2017:
HK$38.1 million) as at 31 March 2018 due to an increase in bills
payable for goods purchased towards the end of the year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (coNT'D)

Treasury Policy

Borrowings, cash and cash equivalents are primarily denominated in
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) and Euro. The management will
continue to monitor the foreign exchange risk exposure of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

We seek to manage our cash flow and capital commitments
effectively to ensure that we have sufficient funds to meet our
existing and future cash requirements. We have not experienced any
difficulties in meeting our obligations as they become due. Assets
under charge include mortgaged property acquired and certain bank
deposits. As at 31 March 2018, performance bonds of approximately
HK$20.7 million (2017: HK$23.0 million) have been issued by the
Group to customers as security of contracts. In respect of which,
restricted cash of HK$3.0 million (2017: HK$3.0 million) was held as
security for the performance bonds. Save for the rental commitment
of our retail outlets and warehouses and performance bonds for
projects, the Group has no other material financial commitments and
contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2018.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

In the coming year, it is expected that Hong Kong will continue to be
affected by political and economic uncertainties around the globe.
The progress of negotiation of peace/security arrangements between
the United States (the US) and its allies, disputes on multilateral trade
treaties between the US and its allies on one hand and between the
US and the PRC on the other hand has created an unquantifiable
economic impact on Hong Kong local economy which is a highly
open and small economy. The trade war will affect the global supply
chain and agricultural sector. It drives up the inflation rate. It
certainly affects business sentiment and global investment
momentum which causes the recent volatility in the financial market
worldwide.

The PRC Government’s measures in stabilising economic
development may affect the local business environment and
consumption sentiment that the slow-down in growth of the number
of Mainland China visitors to Hong Kong has translated into trouble
for retail sales and tourism industry in Hong Kong. In Hong Kong,
while business sentiment has remained cautiously optimistic
generally, signs of economic growth may be affected by external
factors such as geopolitical tensions and monetary policy changes of
major economies. As Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the US dollar,
the market expectation of further US interest rate hike will affect
Hong Kong interest rates in the coming year that in turn may have an
impact on housing prices.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

FUTURE PROSPECTS (cONT'D)

Following a change of administration on 1 July 2017, the Hong Kong
Government has adopted a proactive approach in making land
available for residential and commercial use. The land-use policy of
Hong Kong has arrived to a point yet to be turned; meanwhile the
housing demand is expected to remain robust and prices will likely
to stay on the rise (due to a relatively short supply of land for private
residential market). The trend of building small flats and bulk
purchases of home-fittings will likely to continue; and accordingly
the supply of architectural builders” hardware and bathroom
collections will have to remain competitive and we are aware that
the expected interest rate increase and the uncertainty of the global
economic outlook because of the trade wars would have potential
impact on the private residential market. We are keen to foster our
competence in bringing quality products and services to our
customers.

Given the uncertainty of the global economy, we shall expand our
presence in the market of kitchen collection and furniture in response
to the growing importance of interior design in residential properties.
To fit with home-buyers’ budget, small-sized housing units will
continue to strive hard to stay dominant in the primary residential
market. We shall monitor and review this trend carefully from time
to time, exploring new opportunities and sales channels in the
market.

Our retail shop rental payments are expected to remain stable. We
shall continue to improve operating efficiency and shop utilisation.

While enhancing our strength, we shall remain vigilant to external
factors in order to stay competitive. The property market is affected
by global, the PRC and local economic performance. Moreover, the
Hong Kong Government’s fiscal and financial policies and further
cooling measures on housing price hike may create an adverse
impact on Hong Kong real estate market. We will continue to
monitor the market trends and refine our strategies from time to time
accordingly.

Pursuant to the announcement on 2 November 2016, the Company
is considering a proposed spin-off and separate listing of the Group’s
kitchen and furniture business on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Details of the announcement are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
As at the date of this report, the Company is still considering the
proposed spin-off and separate listing.
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Directors’ Report EZ=g&#HE

The Board of Directors is pleased to submit their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out on
pages 140 to 141.

Details of the analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS, APPROPRIATIONS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 88 to 89.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in notes 27 and 33(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Board declared and paid an interim dividend of HK1 cent per
share for the six months ended 30 September 2017 (for the six
months ended 30 September 2016: HK1.5 cents), totalling
HK$6,006,000 (for the six months ended 30 September 2016:
HK$9,009,000).

The Board has resolved to recommend, at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting (the “AGM”) to be held on 19 September 2018, a
final dividend of HK2.5 cents per share for the year ended 31 March
2018 (for the year ended 31 March 2017: HK2.5 cents) (the “Final
Dividend”), totalling HK$15,015,000 (for the year ended 31 March
2017: HK$15,015,000).

If it is duly approved by the members at the AGM, the Final Dividend
will be distributed to members, whose names appear on the principal
or branch register of members of the Company in the Cayman Islands
or Hong Kong respectively (collectively the “Register of Members”)
as at the close of business on 2 October 2018. The payment will be
made on 16 October 2018.

EFERARZHE-F - \F=A=+-BAL%F
E2EFEREREBEEAUBRE -

EREBREEOM

ARBIZEBEBEBRELZK - ARRIEBHER
RIZHBHNRE 14081418 -

AEBARFERBEDME D 2 RBADMFIIRER
EMBImKRMES -

48 REDIK MR

AREBAFE 7 ZEHNESSE8I A ZEAETEW

REBRARBNEE 2 FEEHHNGREYBHR
KEFEE27 & 33() °

¢\

EEgOREE T +tFENA=Z+HLEAEAE
R EIR S ER 1B (BE-S— R ENA
Z+HEREA: PHBREER1ISEWL) &1
6,006,000 T (HEZ=—E—"FNLA=Z+HLA~E
B :9,009,000/87T) °

EFEERARZE - N\FALATIABREITZERER
RRFRE((RRBEAS)) L BRREREHE—
E-N\FZAZ+ALFEZRPEBRE(TRER
ENER25BW(HEE_E—tF=A=+—HLt
FEE258M) - 4150150008 T(BE-Z
—tF=A=+—HI1EFE :15,015,000%F5T)

MR RN BB E Rg EIEAXIAE - REIBEH
ENFR-ZB-NFTA-_REERBERE LT
ARADHERSEHEXABTAFE T ERRAM
HMREFRL DM (R [RREM]) 2 RR - REK
BRR B N\F+A+RAXM -

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed as follows:

(@) For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to
attend and vote at the AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 12 September 2018 to 19
September 2018, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
right to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Abacus Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 11 September
2018.

(b)  For the purpose of determining shareholders who qualify for the
Final Dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from 28 September 2018 to 2 October 2018, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the Final Dividend, all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with Tricor Abacus Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30
p.m. on 27 September 2018.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company had not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2018, calculated
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
HK$65,189,000 (2017: HK$85,127,000). Under Section 34 of the
Companies Law (2018 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium is available for distribution to shareholders, provided that
no distribution shall be paid to shareholders out of the Company’s
share premium unless the Company shall be able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and there is no restriction against such rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES

As at 31 March 2018, the Company indirectly held full interest in an
office property for investment purpose. The property is located at
19/F, First Commercial Building, 33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong. The property is held on long lease. Furthers details of
the properties held for investment purposes are set out in the note 17
to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

The details of bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings as at 31
March 2018 are set out in the note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$108,000.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, /.p.

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

Mr. WAN Sze Chung
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S

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, aged 61, is a founding member of the Group
and the Chairman of the Company. He is a director of seven
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE possesses over 30 years of
experience in the trading of building materials. He is responsible for
the planning of the Group’s overall strategies and the overall
management of the Group.

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, aged 67, a founding member of the Group,
was appointed as an Executive Director and Vice Chairman of the
Company on 21 June 2012. He established his reputation in the
industry and has a wealth of experience in brand building, new
product development and structuring the management of the Group.
Mr. TSE is the cousin of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing
Director of the Company, and the father of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin,
the Deputy Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, aged 59, is the Managing Director of the
Company and joined the Group in 1979. He is a director of twenty-
three subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE possesses over 30 years
of experience in the trading of building materials and is responsible
for the retail business of the Group. Mr. TSE also assists in the
strategic planning and management of the Group. He is the brother
of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the chairman of the Board.

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun, aged 50, joined the Group in 1994. Mr. LAU was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 10 December
2001. He is a director of one subsidiary of the Company. He is
responsible for project sales. Mr. LAU graduated from Hong Kong
Baptist University (formerly Baptist College) in 1992 with a
Bachelor’s Degree of Science.

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, aged 38, is the Deputy Managing Director of
the Company and joined the Group in 2004. He was appointed as
an Executive Director of the Company on 8 September 2008 and is a
director of eighteen subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE graduated
from University of Toronto with a Bachelor’s Degree of Commerce.
He is responsible for internal information technology development,
the launching of the furniture business and the marketing of products
distributed by the Group. Mr. TSE is a nephew of Mr. TSE Sun Po,
Tony, the Managing Director of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT coNT'D)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, s.p., aged 71, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 28 January 2000. Mr.
LEUNG holds a Master’s Degree of Business Administration of the
University of East Asia, Macau (now known as “the University of
Macau”). Mr. LEUNG is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England & Wales, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors; also
an associate of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. LEUNG is
also an Independent Non-executive Director of Victory Securities
(Holdings) Company Limited, a company listed on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic, aged 69, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 19 June 2001. He graduated
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1972 with Honours
Bachelor’s Degree of Social Science in Economics. He was appointed
as a Director and general manager of Hongkong Ferry (Holdings)
Ltd., formerly The Hongkong & Yaumatei Ferry Co., Ltd. until late
1989. He has been actively involved in garment industry and IT
business for the last few years.

Mr. WAN Sze Chung, aged 43, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director on 27 September 2004. Mr. Wan obtained a
Master Degree in Business Administration with the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, a Master of Education (Counselling &
Guidance) with University of Newcastle upon Tyne, a Second
Bachelor’s Degree of Law with Tsinghua University and a Bachelor
Degree in Accountancy with the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Mr. WAN is an independent non-executive
director of Plover Bay Technologies Limited, a company listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also a director of
Jacob Walery Limited specialising in corporate consultancy and
training since 1 March 2007 while he is also teaching with various
universities and professional institutes.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT coNT'D)

Senior management
Mr. AU Lai Chuen, Hercules, aged 61, joined the Group in 1982.
Mr. AU possesses over 30 years of experience in the building
materials industry and is responsible for project related sales and
marketing activities.

Mr. CHANG Kai Chuen, Roy, aged 44, joined the Group in 1991.
Mr. CHANG is a general manager of project sales division. He
possesses over 20 years of experience in building materials industry
and is responsible for project sales.

Mr. LO Cheuk Hang, Teddy, aged 41, joined the Group in 2004. Mr.
LO is the chief operating officer of the kitchen project division of the
Group. He possesses over 15 years of experience in kitchen
collection business. He graduated from The Open University of
Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s Degree of Arts in Chinese Humanities.

Mr. LO Wai Man, aged 64, joined the Group in 1979 and is a
director of seven subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. LO is a technical
director and is responsible for overseeing the provision of technical
support for bathroom collections. He possesses over 30 years of
experience in selling building materials.

DIRECTORS” SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors, including Independent Non-executive
Directors, has entered into a letter of appointment, which constitutes
a service contract, with the Company for a term of 12 months. They
are subject to re-election by shareholders at annual general meetings
and at least once every three years on a rotation basis in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company. No Director has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert and
Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, /.p. will retire at the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Mr. LEUNG Kwong
Kin, s.r., Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic and Mr. WAN Sze Chung are
Independent Non-executive Directors and were appointed for a fixed
term of one year.
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DIRECTORS” INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of their independence pursuant to
the Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board considers that all of its Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent in character and judgement and fulfil the
guidelines set out in the Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, no Director was interested in any business apart
from the Company’s business, which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s business
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them,
their or any of their heirs, executors or administrators, shall or may
incur or sustain by for by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in
their respective offices or trusts. An insurance cover was maintained
during the year to protect Directors against potential costs and
liabilities arising from claims brought against the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed in an
extraordinary general meeting held on 9 September 2010. The Share
Option Scheme expired on 8 September 2015. The Company has not
operated any share option schemes during the year ended 31 March
2018. As at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018, there was no
outstanding share option of the Company.

Apart from the above, no equity-linked agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company subsisted during or
at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS” MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE COMPANY’S
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed under the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, no other transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company’s subsidiaries or holding companies was a party and in
which a Director of the Company and the Director’s connected party
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
during or at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS FROM RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Under the terms of the Company’s Share Option Scheme adopted on
9 September 2010, which was made in accordance with the Listing
Rules governing share option schemes at that time, the Board of the
Company may, at their discretion, invite any full-time employees,
Non-executive or Executive Directors or shareholders of the Group
and consultants of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe
for ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company. The maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the scheme may not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company. 3,330,000 share options had been granted to the Directors
and substantial shareholders of the Company or an associate of them
since its adoption; and all of which were subsequently lapsed. The
Share Option Scheme expired on 8 September 2015. As at 31 March
2017 and 31 March 2018, there was no outstanding share option of
the Company.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year and at the end of
the year was the Company, its subsidiaries or its other associated
corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the directors and
chief executives of the company (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) to acquire any interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the company or
its specified undertakings or other associated corporations.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES” INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company and their associates in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (“SFO”)) which have been notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules were as follows:

(i) Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares
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Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Note 1) {31 % 4 (Bat1) - 37,197,294 - 37,197,294 6.19%

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (Note 2) #8554 (Hit2) - 108,302,488 - 108,302,488 18.03%

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Note 3) B (H7E3) - 43,659,542 - 43,659,542 7.27%

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Note 2)  #lEH 54 (Hi12) - 108,302,488 - 108,302,488 18.03%

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun Blamrs - - - - -

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, /.P. RN A Tt - - - - -

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic wmELLE _ _ _ _ _

Mr. WAN Sze Chung BB - - - - -

Note 1: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Fast Way Bret1 o ZEARA B B Fast Way Management
Management Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry and his spouse are the Limited#5A © HFESRERERBRZEA
beneficiaries.

Note 2: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Universal Star Bet2 o 5% %A AR R # & 6 Universal Star Group
Group Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin and Limited 45 @ ExEE - SHEGEEERRE
their family are the beneficiaries. E2FGEKRERZEA

Note 3: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by New Happy Hat3 5% %A A M) % & B New Happy Times

Times Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and his family are the
beneficiaries.

Limited#575 » 18 %4 REF KM B AE
HA -
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION (coNT'D)

(ii) Negotiator Consultants Limited (“NCL”)

Personal
interest
N £

Director =
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Note 4)  #¥TA% 4 (M5t 4) -
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (Note 4)  @i¥TE &4 (ffit4) -
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Note 4) AELAE (T 4) -
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Note 4)  HIEHE £ (Hfzt4) -

Note 4: Such share is held by Bache Hill Group Limited.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executives
or their associates had, as at 31 March 2018, any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

At no time during the year, the Directors and chief executives
(including their spouses and children under 18 years of age) had any
interests in, or had been granted, or exercised, any rights to subscribe
for shares of the Company, its specified undertakings or its other
associated corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
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(i) Negotiator Consultants Limited ((NCL.)

Number of ordinary shares held

REEERYE
Family Corporate Other
interest interest interest Total
Rk NRER HitiEz Bt
1 - 1 1
1 - 1 1
1 - 1 1
1 - 1 1
Kiat4 - #ZZM{ B Bache Hill Group Limited 57 ©
B EXF#EN  RZZE-N\F=A=+—0H #&

EERERTBRABHIBREZHEALIRARAR
HAEMBAEREE (ERxREFRPEHRIIEXVE) 2
ERReD - BEkD RESS - BAREIES AR
EBIEXVERE 7 R 8D BBAME AR A BRI Z
BamgAR (BREEREES RS GHIARIRX
WEFIRRREEZEEZIAR)  IREBEEF R
HIERGIF 352 RACARGMREFES M 2
BmIORE  HBRBELETRBNEMNE AR E R
ZRERBORA °

EERTFBTBRAR(BRERFZEBIRB TR
B FL)BERFEREAERHEEHEFTAARF
HEEXBREMABEERD 2 #am - KEER
FTERATEA MR ARE Ll A 5 2 B M HRIE
EFRIE GO REB ARG (6228 ) HKE -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2018, the following persons (not being Directors or
chief executives of the Company) had the following interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO:

Long position in shares of the Company

BRE®

Name of shareholder

Happy Voice Limited Happy Voice Limited

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any
substantial shareholder (other than Directors of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company that were recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 March 2018.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Negotiator Consultants Limited

The related party transaction as disclosed in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
in respect of rental expenses of approximately HK$2,820,000 paid to
Negotiator Consultants Limited (“NCL”) constitutes a continuing
connected party transaction. NCL is a subsidiary of a company in
which Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Sun
Po, Tony and Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin have beneficial interests. The
determination of the rental expenses followed the pricing policies
and guidelines set out in the continuing connected transaction
announcement dated 31 March 2015.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and have confirmed that these
continuing connected transactions were entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) either on
normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties; and
(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

TEBM

RZZBE-NF=ZA=+—HB UTAL(FEEL
ARBRSITBAR) RARB R R AR %
BRBEBSRPEKRAIE 336 GATE 2 BRMAAE
BRERSORR

RADARBZHR
Number of Percentage
ordinary of share
shares held capital issued
HEBRTRAR
BEEBERYE ZBEDH
73,581,206 12.25%

B EXFREIN R-Z-N\F=A=1t—HB AR
AYTHBEREMERRR(ARREERIN RA
RERRMD KB P HEARIEES MR RDIS
3B IGREIFE 2 B MATREEERIOXE -

Negotiator Consultants Limited
HEMBHREAMNENAREEE T - /\F=A
= + — B Ik F & M Negotiator Consultants Limited
(INCL]) S5 1 £ B2 £92,820,000 B T 2 B A £
RHBR—EFEBETRS - NCLAR WAL
£ BEREL  BIHMEAERSEREERAER
R ARETHEBAR - HeMXEREPR
E-AFZA=T-HZHERERS MR
EEBRIIESIEE -

BUFHTESLEEN LS ERER SRER
REREWBRSHORNEBRFR—BREHS
TRER ATST ¢ (i) 1 — R 7 2 K TR A A )
BB E = IR ERET S R Gi B B AR R
SHBET MAGRATABEHEADFRE
BRFI -
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (coNT'D)

Negotiator Consultants Limited (cont'd)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group as above in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group recognises that external events may affect the
environment in which the Group operates. The Group’s business is
managed by an experienced management team who have a close
involvement in the day-to-day running of the business, which ensures
that the Group is prepared for, and can react quickly by adapting its
business to, changes in the operating environment. Further
discussions on the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties are
provided throughout this annual report, particularly in “Chairman’s
Statement” (pages 4 to 5), “Management Discussion and Analysis”
(pages 6 to 10), “Risk Management and Internal Control Systems”
(pages 44 to 49), “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
(pages 55 to 79) and “Financial Risk Management” (pages 115 to
119). The above discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, save as disclosed on page 29 in Corporate
Governance Report, as far as the Board and management are aware,
the Group has complied with the requirements under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) and the Cayman Islands Companies Law.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group is committed to maintaining a collaborative relationship
with its employees, customers and suppliers. Details of which are set
out on pages 67 to 72.

REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2018, our workforce was recorded at 173 employees
(2017: 164). Total staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments)
amounted to HK$79,203,000 (2017: HK$71,645,000).

Remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed regularly, making
reference to legal framework, market conditions and performance of
the Group and individual staff members (including the Directors).
The remuneration policy and remuneration packages of the Executive
Directors and members of the senior management of the Group are
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee in accordance with its
Terms of Reference. Details of Directors’ emoluments during the year
are set out on page 130.

Senior management emoluments
For the year ended 31 March 2018, emoluments paid to members of
the senior management are as follows:

HEE BF MHEENRE

AEEHNEEREE BPRHEEERAIERE -
BRFBEEHNE7E72H °

R

RZE—N\F=ZA=1+—H KEBETAZAE173
HZ(ZE—LF 164%) BEIRA(BREESH
B ) 479,203,000 7T ( —F —+4F : 71,645,000 7%

JL) °

AEETEHLELRTEE M AEERERET
(BIEEFE)Z2XRE  BIVTEFHECK - FHEES
EREEBREERRIAEENTEST RS RER
ABZHMBRERTFMNES - AFEESH B
EMNE1308

BREEETMH
BE_Z-\F=ZA=1+—HILFE XNTFak
EEEZHMIT -

Number of
Emolument bands individuals
4R A¥
HK$0-HK$ 1,000,000 07 7T 1,000,000 7 7T 2
HK$1,000,001-HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 772 2,000,000 78 7T 2
Total st 4
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases RBE

The largest supplier BAMER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate TR AR
Sales HER

The largest customer RAEF

Five largest customers in aggregate REREF @5t

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group endeavours to minimising pollution and protecting the
environment by conserving natural resources, reducing the use of
energy and waste. Details of which are set out on pages 62 to 66.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 158.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, as at the
date of this report, it is confirmed that the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review disclosure of the Group for the year as required
by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
are set out in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 6 to 10
and pages 55 to 79 respectively of the Annual Report. The business
review forms part of this Directors’ Report.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company.

This report is signed for and on behalf of the Board.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2018

T2 M
RAVBHRRCHBEIBIGESMEBMEX -
B SCBKGE g RN B 15 AT R AR 1 B JE A SRR AR
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REREFERFAWRS
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FE

B8 - \FRAZ+LH
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TRERME

Corporate Governance Report

E. Bon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) endeavours to maintaining
its high standard of corporate governance, and continues to review
and reinforce its corporate governance measures. The Company
believes that accountability and reporting system with high
transparency for the Company’s operation has been in place.
Disclosures could also be made timely and accurately. At the same
time, the rights of shareholders can be treated and protected
equitably.

The Company is led by an efficient and responsible board of
directors (the “Board”), which is comprised of individuals with high
qualifications and relevant experience. This can ensure that the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) maintain good corporate
governance practices and have comprehensive internal control and
risk management systems, so as to cope with the Group’s
development strategies and increase the shareholders’ value.

The Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) published by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited sets out the principles of good
corporate governance and provides two levels of recommendations:

(@) code provisions, with which issuers are expected to comply,
but from which they may choose to deviate, provided they give
considered reasons for non-compliance; and

recommended best practices, with which issuers are
encouraged to comply, but which are provided for guidance
only.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”), the
Board has complied with all the code provisions in the Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2018, with the exception of the
following deviation:

Under the code provision C.2.5, the Company should have an
internal audit function. Given the current scale of operations, the
Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board is
directly responsible for risk management and internal control systems
of the Group and for the review of its effectiveness. The Board will
continue review, at least annually, this arrangement going forward in
light of the evolving needs of the Group.
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The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules sets
out a required standard against which Directors must measure their
conduct regarding transactions in securities of their listed companies.
The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Director’s securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors confirmed compliance
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
year.

THE BOARD

The Board comprises five Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-executive Directors. The names of the Directors are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (Vice Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director)

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Deputy Managing Director)
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, /.p.

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

Mr. WAN Sze Chung

For the terms of appointment of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, please refer to Directors’ Report on page 19. In accordance
to the Articles of Association of the Company, at each general
meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three
years. Formal letters of appointment have been issued to all Directors
setting out all key terms and conditions of their respective
appointment. Each newly appointed Director will also be issued with
a letter of appointment.

Biographies of all Directors are listed in Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management set out on pages 17 to 18.

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board takes
decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

The Board is responsible for establishing the strategic direction of the
Company, setting the objectives of management, monitoring the
performance of management, overseeing the management of the
Company’s relationship with shareholders, ensuring that a framework
of prudent and effective controls is in place to enable risks to be
assessed and managed, setting the Company’s values and standards,
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management.

When the Board delegates management and administration functions
to management, it has given clear directions on the powers of
management with respect to the circumstances where management
is to report back and obtain prior approval from the Board before
making decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the
Company. The Company has formalised functions reserved to the
Board and the management respectively; and the Board reviews
those arrangements periodically to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the Company’s needs.

The management and staff of the Company ensure the successful
implementation of the strategies, business directions and policies as
determined by the Board. In doing so, they must apply business
principles and ethics, which are consistent with those expected by
the Board and Shareholders and other stakeholders.

The Independent Non-executive Directors help to ensure that the
Board can make independent judgement efficiently. They also take
the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise. They scrutinise
the Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives, and monitor performance reporting. They make a positive
contribution to the development of the Company’s strategy and
policies through independent, constructive and informed comments.
The Independent Non-executive Directors possess appropriate
professional qualification. Among them, some possess expertise in
accounting or financial management. Each Independent Non-
executive Director has also submitted an annual written confirmation
to the Company confirming his independence. Three Independent
Non-executive Directors are engaged by contract every year and are
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association and the Listing Rules. The Company
considered that all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Except as disclosed in the Annual Report, there is no special
relationship, including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship among the members of the Board.

All Directors give sufficient time and attention to the Group's affairs
and have actively participated in the Board meetings to discuss the
overall strategies, business directions and policies of the Group.
Throughout the year, the Company held 4 regular and 7 non-regular
Board meetings, and 1 general meeting. To ensure that Directors
could obtain all related information to make an informed decision
and to perform their duties and responsibilities, documents for the
Board meeting were supplied to Directors for their consideration
before the meeting according to the regulations set out in the Listing
Rules and code provisions of the Code.

The attendance of board meetings and general meetings during the
year is set out on page 49.

The Board makes arrangement to provide opportunities for all
Directors to include matters in the agenda of regular Board meetings.
At least 14 days’ notices are given in respect of regular Board
meetings. For regular Board meetings, an agenda and relevant
materials are sent, in full, to all Directors in a timely manner and at
least 3 days before the intended date of board meeting. For all other
Board meetings, Directors are given as much notice as reasonable
and practicable in the circumstances.

Management provides the Board and board committees with
adequate and timely information which is accurate, clear, complete
and reliable and enables Directors to make informed decisions on
matters placed before them, and perform their duties and
responsibilities as directors. Management provides adequate
explanations and information to the Board to enable Directors to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other information
put before them for approval. In addition, the Board and each
Director have separate and independent access to the Company’s
senior management. All Directors have free access to board papers
and related materials. Queries raised by Directors are provided with
a prompt and full response.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Minutes of each Board meeting and board committee meeting are
kept by the company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) and are
available for inspection by any Director. Minutes record in sufficient
detail the matters considered by the Board and the decisions
reached. Draft and final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comment and records respectively within a reasonable time
after the Board meeting is held.

All Directors have free access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures,
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. Moreover, all
Directors may seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances in the furtherance of their duties and for the associated
fees at the Company’s expenses.

If a substantial shareholder or Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical
board meeting set up for that purpose and voted on by Directors who
have no material interest in the transaction. Directors’ concerned
must abstain from voting on any Board resolution and will not be
counted in the quorum.

A formal, considered and transparent procedure is in place for the
appointment of new directors. Newly appointed directors are
provided with briefing materials to ensure that they are familiar with
the Company’s operations and business, responsibilities under statute
and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements and the Company’s business and governance policies.
In addition, an orderly succession for appointments is maintained to
ensure high standard of corporate governance of the Company.

The Company encourages Directors to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge,
skills and understanding of the business and markets in which the
Group operates. The Company continuously updates Directors on
the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements, as well as information related to
the Group’s business and operations, to ensure compliance, enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices and enable
them to discharge duties properly. This has involved various forms of
activities including attending seminars, reading materials relevant to
the Company’s business, director’s duties and responsibilities.

The records of training of Directors received during the year is set
out on page 49.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Chairman of the Board and Managing Director (in this report,
“Managing Director” is equivalent to “Chief Executive” set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules) are two clearly separated roles and
are performed by different individuals. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry,
Chairman of the Board, is responsible for managing the Board. Mr.
TSE Sun Po, Tony, Managing Director, is responsible for the
Company’s operations. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director has been clearly
defined and the written terms of reference have been set.

Responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Providing leadership for the Board;

Ensuring all Directors are properly briefed on matters to be
discussed at Board meetings;

Ensuring all Directors receive adequate, accurate, clear,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner;

Ensuring that the Board works effectively, performs its
responsibilities and discusses all key and appropriate issues in a
timely manner;

Ensuring that, the Company Secretary draws up and approves
the agenda for Board meetings on the Chairman’s behalf, taking
into account any matters proposed by other Directors for
inclusion in the agenda;

Ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communication with Shareholders and that views of
Shareholders are communicated to the Board as a whole;

Ensuring good corporate governance practices are in place and
procedures are established;

Encouraging all Directors to make a full and active contribution
to the Board’s affairs, giving each Director an opportunity to
express his views at Board meetings, ensuring that the Board
acts in the best interests of the Company, encouraging Directors
with different views to voice their concerns, allowing sufficient
time for discussion of issues and ensuring that Board decisions
fairly reflect Board consensus;
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR (cONT'D)

(i)

Holding meetings with Non-executive Directors annually
without the presence of Executive Directors; and

Promoting a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the
effective contribution of all Directors, in particular Non-
executive Directors, and building constructive relations
between Executive and Non-executive Directors.

The Managing Director is appointed by the Board. His
responsibilities are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Providing leadership for the management;

Implementing and reporting to the Board on the Company’s
strategies;

Overseeing the implementation by the Company of the
objectives set by the Board;

Providing all such information to the Board as is necessary to
enable the Board to monitor the performance of management;

Leading the management of the Company’s relationships with
its stakeholders;

Putting in place programmes for management development and
succession;

Working with the Head of Finance, establishing and
maintaining proper internal controls and systems as well as
disclosure controls and procedures; and

Discharging such duties and authorities as may be delegated in
writing to him by the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 29 September
2005. It is comprised of two Independent Non-executive Directors
and one Executive Director. The Remuneration Committee is chaired
by Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic.

The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee is clearly
defined and posted on the Company’s website.

The roles and function of the Remuneration Committee are as
follows:

(@ To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) To review and approve the management’s remuneration
pp 8
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

(c) To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

(d)  To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
for Non-executive Directors;

(e) To consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

(fl  To review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment to ensure it is consistent with contractual
terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT'D)

Remuneration Committee (cont’d)

(g) To review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

(h)  To ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration;

(i)  To consult the Chairman and/or the chief executive about their
remuneration proposals for Executive Directors. The committee
should have access to professional advice if necessary; and

(), To consider other topics as defined by the Board.

The Remuneration Committee reports to the Board on its discussion
results and recommendations after each meeting and is provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and is authorised by the
Board to obtain independent legal or other professional advice.

Throughout the year, the Remuneration Committee met once to
review the remuneration of the Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company. The Committee also reviewed and
determined the policy for the remuneration of Executive Directors;
assessed their performance and approved the terms of service
contracts of Directors. No Director had participated in the
determination of his or her own remuneration. Discussion results and
recommendations of the meetings have been proposed to the Board
for its review.

The attendance of committee members at committee meetings during
the year is set out on page 49.

The remuneration policy of the Group is set out on page 26.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT'D)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, established on 22 March 2000, is currently
comprised of three Independent Non-executive Directors. The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, /.p..

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee is clearly defined
and posted on the Company’s website.

The roles and function of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(a)

To be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;

To review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The audit committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

To develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose, “external
auditor” includes any entity that is under common control,
ownership or management with the audit firm or any entity that
a reasonable and informed third party knowing all relevant
information would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally. The audit committee should
report to the Board, identifying and making recommendations
on any matters where action or improvement is needed;

To act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

To monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgements contained in them;

To discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the auditor may wish to
discuss (in the absence of management where necessary);
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT'D)

Audit Committee (cont’d)

(g

To review the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems covering all controls including financial, operational
and compliance controls;

To discuss the risk management and internal control system
with management to ensure that management has performed its
duty to have an effective internal control system. This discussion
should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
function;

To consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response to these findings,
and review the statements concerning risk management and
internal control to be included in the annual report;

Where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, to review and
approve the annual internal audit plan, and to ensure that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

To review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

To review the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response;

To review the Company’s statement on internal control systems
(where one is included in the annual report) prior to
endorsement by the Board;

To ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

To report to the Board on the matters in the code provision of
Appendix 14 C.3 of the Listing Rules; and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT'D)

Audit Committee (cont'd)

(p) To review arrangements that employees of the Company can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The committee should ensure that proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent investigation of these
matters and for appropriate follow-up action.

In addition, the Audit Committee is responsible for corporate
governance functions as below:

(@) To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(b) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(c) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(d) To review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Throughout the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the interim
results for the six months ended 30 September 2017, discussed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
with management, and reviewed the annual budget for audit fees. In
addition, the Audit Committee considered and reviewed the annual
results for the year ended 31 March 2018 on 27 June 2018, and
proposed to the Board for their approval.

In addition, throughout the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies (including the Inside
Information Policy (“the Inside Information Policy”)) and practices,
reviewed and monitored the Company’s code of conduct manual,
reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements (including the Code), as well as
the mandatory disclosure requirements in respect of the Corporate
Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT'D)

Audit Committee (cont'd)

All members of the Audit Committee actively participated in the
committee’s meetings. Throughout the year, the Audit Committee
met twice, full minutes of which are kept by the Company Secretary.
Draft and final versions of minutes of meetings are sent to all
committee members for their comment and records within a
reasonable time after the meeting. Discussion results and
recommendations have been proposed to the Board for its review,
and related recommendations were adopted by the Board. The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties
and is authorised by the Board to obtain independent legal or other
professional advice.

The attendance of committee members at committee meetings during
the year is set out on page 49.

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing the
financial statements. As at 31 March 2018, none of the Directors
were aware of any uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. As such, the Directors have prepared the
Company’s financial statements on a going concern basis.

Responsibilities of external auditors to the financial statements are set
out in “Independent Auditor’s Report” (pages 80 to 87).

Auditor’s Remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the following auditor’s
remuneration has been incurred by the Company:

PricewaterhouseCoopers

— Audit services — BRI
— Non-audit services — IR RTE
Total Fohy

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the fees to
PricewaterhouseCoopers, amounting to HK$2,488,000, were
primarily for audit services and those for non-audit services
amounted to HK$120,000, 4.8% of the total fees. The non-audit
services provided by the auditor was tax compliance services.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 March 2012. It is

comprised of two Independent Non-executive Directors and one
Executive Director. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr.
WONG Wah, Dominic.

The Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee is clearly
defined and posted on the Company’s website.

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are as follows:
(@) Review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and

make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

Identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

Assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and

Make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee reports to the Board on its discussion
results and recommendations after each meeting and is provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and is authorised by the
Board to obtain independent legal or other professional advice.

Throughout the year, the Nomination Committee met once to review
the Board and senior management of the Company. The Committee
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board, reviewed
the board diversity policy, reviewed the time and contribution from
Directors, assessed the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors, made recommendation on the appointment and
reappointment of Directors at the 2018 AGM and discussed the
succession planning for the Company’s Board and senior
management. In addition, the Committee reviewed the nomination
policy (including procedures, process and criteria to select and
recommend candidates for directorship). Discussion results and
recommendations have been proposed to the Board for its review.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT'D)

Nomination Committee (cont'd)

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted its own board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Board Diversity Policy aims to achieve
diversity of the Board through consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience. The Nomination Committee
of the Company shall review the Board Diversity Policy as
appropriate and make recommendations on any proposed revisions
to the Board.

Board appointments will be based on objective criteria having due
regard to the benefits of diversity of the Board.

The attendance of committee members at committee meetings during
the year is set out on page 49.

BUSINESS MODEL

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The Company’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in the importing,
wholesale, retail and installation of architectural builders’” hardware,
bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The objective of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) is to become one of the leading quality suppliers of
architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections and
furniture. Our goal is to enhance the brand value of the Group by
managing customers’ expectation of getting products that
commensurate with their lifestyles and quality services. Founded four
decades ago, the Group has established reputation and gained trust
from major contractors, property developers and dealers. The Group
also runs retail outlets and showrooms to display products.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

The Group endeavours to generate return to shareholders through:

(@) Leveraging our core competencies in products and services to
generate profits;

(b) Maintaining collaborative relationships with staff members,
customers and suppliers; and

(c) Adopting a prudent financial management policy at all times.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the
Group’s assets. The Board is also responsible for the risk management
and internal control system and reviewing their effectiveness.

The systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

Process of risk management and internal control systems

—

Risk
Assessment
[ B 5

The Process of

’ Internal
Control
Mor;;t:(;ring W E:.B E‘{: ;l,'g‘g
bk =

Information &
Communication

MERIZR

.

Internal controls encompass a set of rules, policies, and procedures
that the Group implements to provide reasonable assurance that:

The Group financial reports are reliable;
The Group operations are effective and efficient; and
The Group activities comply with applicable laws and

regulations. The Board, management, and other personnel are
responsible for the internal control system.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS (coNT'D)

The key components of the Group's internal control structure are as
follows:

FE 2T BBHET
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AEBAMEIEREN T ZEKRBIAT -

Control Environment

Establishing a foundation for monitoring internal control begins
with an effective tone at the top of the organisation. The reason
of this is so important that management’s attitude regarding
monitoring will determine the selection of evaluators and the
approach to monitoring. The tone set by the management will
influence the way staff members conduct monitoring activities.
In turn, the Board will influence and guide how management
applies and conducts monitoring.
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BETESEHNAN - HEN  EFEXNEYE
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Control Activities
The internal control of the Group includes the following areas:

* Integrity and ethics

e  Commitment to competence

e Board of Directors and audit committee participation
e Management philosophy and operating style

e Organisational structure

e Assignment of authority and responsibility

e Human resource policies and practices
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS (coNT'D)

R\ B 12 M A B EEHE AR (#8)

Information and Communication

The Group's risk management structure is shown as below:

Implementation / Execution

®iE/ BT

t 1

1

Department /
Functional Heads
WA/ WREEE

Risk owners

BEBREREA

The Board has the overall responsibility in ensuring that the
Company establishes and maintains robust and effective risk
management and internal control systems for the Group.

The Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, oversees the
management on the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Company, including financial controls, operational controls and
compliance controls.

The management is the decision-making body of the risk
management control system. It comprises members from various
functions of the Group so as to provide holistic coverage of the
Group as a whole.

Department and functional heads are responsible for managing
risk during their day-to-day operations. They operate in
accordance with the clearly defined procedures, responsibilities
and limits of authority. They identify and assess risk associated
with their operations and report to the management for review.

Board of Directors
BEEg
Ultimate responsible body
BRREBERE

Management Audit Committee
ERE ERERR
Decision-making body Governance body
REWE A

MERRXR

AERKRBEREBI TR

Governance
-4
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Monitoring

Monitoring of internal control is performed through application
of both on-going evaluations and separate evaluations. These
evaluations ascertain whether other components of internal
control continue to function as designed and intended. In
addition, these evaluations facilitate identification of internal
control deficiencies and communicate them to appropriate
officials responsible for taking corrective actions. More serious
deficiencies are communicated to higher levels of management
and to the Board of Directors when appropriate.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS (coNT'D)

B2 HRET
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Risk Assessment

Business risks change over time. The internal control system
needs to be capable of determining that the controls in place are
relevant and effective in addressing new risks. A monitoring
process must be capable of addressing the need for revisions in
the design of controls based on changing risk. Effective internal
control systems must be capable of containing risks at an
acceptable level to ensure effective and efficient operations on
an on-going basis. Thus, continuous feeding of information and
communication help monitoring the changes and reaction.

By the use of the modern IT system to record, maintain and
produce outputs of accurate, complete, and timely information,
the Board and management team can:

(@) Evaluate the risks associated with the updated mode of
collecting, storing, and reporting data (e.g. recording the
sale of merchandise, updating a customer’s address,
preparing a report on sales by product);

(b) Design specific control procedures that help control the
risks applicable to the new design; and

(c) Ensure accountants are familiar with IT capabilities and
risks, and recognise the opportunities that the IT system
provides to prevent, detect, and correct errors and
irregularities as the business events are executed.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS (coNT'D)

Risk assessment identifies and analyses the relevant risks associated
with the Group’s objectives. It forms the basis for determining what
risks need to be controlled and the controls required to manage
them. Our head of risk management has periodic meetings with
directors and the management team to oversee and discuss the
proper operating style with each other. Directors and the
management team will then make decision and delegate to each
department for execution. Through daily communication and
information gathered, directors and management team will be able
to monitor the daily operation and risks that might occur, thus be
able to prevent or minimise them. It also makes sure operations are
in compliance with laws, rules, and regulations. At the same time,
each department’s missions and goals are achieved. The
management confirmed that the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company were effective.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company recognises its disclosure obligation under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The
Company conducts its affairs with close regard to the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission. The Company has included in its staff handbook a strict
prohibition on the unauthorised use of confidential including inside
information in order to make sure appropriate handling and
dissemination of Inside Information is in place.

Review of risk management and internal control systems for the
year ended 31 March 2018

The Board, through the Audit Committee, oversees the management
on the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company, including
financial controls, operational controls and compliance controls.

The Group carried out control activities comprising a diverse range
of policies and procedures, including: conducting reviews of actual
performance, reviewing of performance reports, checking
information processing in transactions, performing physical controls,
analysing performance indicators and dividing and segregating duties
amongst different people. These can help the Group ensure proper
internal control is in place across departments/divisions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS (coNT'D)

Review of risk management and internal control systems for the
year ended 31 March 2018 (cont'd)

Throughout the year, the Board through the Audit Committee, holds
an annual review to consider and discuss, including but not limited
to, the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function. During the year, the Company did not
have an internal audit department; details of which are set out on
page 29. Based on the review, the Board considers that there is no
significant change in the nature and extent of risks and the
Company’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment since the last annual review. The Board was
not aware of any significant issues that would have an adverse
impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2018.

Based on the internal financial controls, half-yearly financial
reporting and timely updates on Listing Rules requirements, the
Group’s processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance are considered by the Board as effective.

BOARD AND COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE AND
TRAINING RECORDS

The attendance of Directors at the Annual General Meeting, Board
and committee meetings and training records for the year ended 31
March 2018 is as follows:

Remuneration

Director 2 Board Committee
Exe FHzEEg

Executive Directors HiTES

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry AEERE 1/11

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert HEERE 11/11

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony B L E 11/11

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin ARG T/

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun Ramskt 8/11 212

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, /.P. RRE AP 5/5 2/2

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic EELE 5/5 2/2

Mr. WAN Sze Chung REIEE 5/5

Notes:

A:  Attending seminars, conference and/or forums

B: Reading newspapers, journals and/or updates
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The selection, appointment and dismissal of the Company Secretary
of the Company is approved by the Board.

Our Company Secretary is Mr. YU Chi Wah. He is also the Chief
Financial Officer and is employed on a full-time basis. During the
year, he had taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional
training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Our
Company Secretary reports to the Board Chairman, co-ordinates the
supply of information to the Directors and facilitates induction and
professional development of Directors. During the year, meeting
agenda and accompanying board papers were provided at least 3
days before the date of the Board or committee meetings.
Furthermore, all Directors have access to the Company Secretary to
ensure that board policies, board procedures and all applicable laws,
rules and regulations are followed.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

[t is the Company’s policies to have open communication and
disclose information in a fair manner. Information disclosure is a key
means to enhance corporate governance standard. Shareholders can
assess the Company’s performance based on the information
disclosed and provide feedback to the Company. Information relating
to the Group and its business, together with its financial conditions,
are disclosed in this report and the Company’s website at
www.ebon.com.hk.

All registered shareholders shall receive either notice of the annual
general meeting and extraordinary general meeting (together the
“Meeting”) or equivalent notification letter by post. The notice of the
Meeting contains an agenda, resolutions proposed and a proxy form.
All shareholders, whose shares are registered in the register of
members, are entitled to attend the Meeting. Shareholders who
cannot attend the Meeting can appoint their proxies or the chairman
of the meeting as their proxies by completing the proxy form
enclosed with the notice of the meeting and returning it to the
Company’s share registrar. Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing
Rules, all votes of shareholders at the Meeting will be taken by poll.
Procedures for demanding a vote by poll, together with the notice of
the meeting, have been enclosed with a circular despatched to the
shareholders. The procedures shall be read out at the Meeting by the
chairman of the meeting so as to make sure shareholders are familiar
with the detailed procedures for conducting a poll. In addition,
separate resolutions for substantially separated issues shall be
proposed to the Meeting for the approval of shareholders.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (coNT'D)

The annual general meeting is considered as an annual significant
event of the Company. The AGM provides a precious opportunity for
shareholders and the Board to exchange constructive opinions. All
Directors shall attend the annual general meeting. Apart from
attending the AGM, the Chairman of the Board shall arrange the
chairmen of each Board Committee to attend and answer questions
at the annual general meeting. The Company’s auditor shall also
attend the annual general meeting to answer questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s
report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Board adopted a Shareholders” Communication Policy reflecting
mostly the current practices of the Company for communication with
its Shareholders. Such Policy aims to set out the provisions with the
objective of ensuring that the Company’s shareholders, in appropriate
circumstances, the investment community at large, are provided with
ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company, so that Shareholders are able to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow them and
the investment community to engage actively with the Company. For
the purpose of this Policy, reference to the investment community is
intended to include the Company’s potential investors as well as
analysis reporting and analysis the Company’s performance.

Shareholders and other stakeholders may at any time send their
written enquiries and concerns by post to the Board by addressing
them to the Company Secretary of the Company at its Head Office as
follows:

The Company Secretary
16th-18th Floors

First Commercial Building

33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (coNT'D)

Shareholders’” Communication Policy (cont’d)

The Company has established a number of channels for maintaining
an on-going dialogue with its Shareholders and the investment
community, and will regularly review this Policy to ensure its
effectiveness as follows:

(@) Information shall be communicated to Shareholders and the
investment community mainly through the Company’s financial
reports (interim and annual reports), annual general meetings
and other general meetings that may be convened, as well as
by making available all the disclosures submitted to The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”) and its corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the
Company’s website.

(b) Effective and timely dissemination of information to
Shareholders and the investment community shall be ensured at
all times. Any question regarding this Policy shall be directed to
the Company Secretary.

Shareholders’ Enquiries
(@) Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Registrar.

(b) Shareholders and the investment community may at any
reasonable time make a request for the Company’s information
to the extent such information is publicly available.

(c) Shareholders and the investment community shall be provided
with designated contacts, e-mail addresses and enquiry lines of
the Company in order to enable them to make any query in
respect of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1.

The Company has only one class of shares and the Articles of
Association of the Company set out the rights of our
shareholders.

Shareholders have right to receive corporate communications
issued by the Company.

Shareholders whose shares held in Tricor Abacus Limited
(“Tricor”) may notify us from time to time through Tricor if they
wish to receive our corporate communications.

Shareholders are furnished with comprehensive background
information in a timely manner concerning the matters to be
decided at general meetings and they are well informed of the
rules including the voting procedures that govern general
meetings.

Subject to the Articles of Association and the rules prescribed
by the Stock Exchange from time to time, shareholders have
right to participate and vote in general meetings. Any
shareholder not attending a general meeting can give proxy to
vote on his/her behalf. Forms of Proxy are sent to shareholders
of the Company together with the notice of meeting.

Shareholders have right to raise questions at general meetings.

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
may request the Board, through the Company Secretary, to
convene an extraordinary general meeting.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all votes of
shareholders at the annual general meeting will be taken by
poll. The chairman of the meeting will explain at the
commencement of the meeting the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll. On a poll, every shareholder present in
person or by proxy will have one vote for every share held. A
shareholder which is a corporation will be present in person if a
duly authorised representative of such shareholder is present at
the meeting. A shareholder present in person or by proxy who
is entitled to more than one vote does not have to use all his or
her votes or to cast all his or her votes the same way. The result
of the poll shall be deemed to be a resolution of the meeting.
After the closure of a general meeting, the poll results will be
published on the Company’s website at www.ebon.com.hk and
the HKEXnews website at www.hkexnews.hk.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (cONT'D)

9. Shareholders are encouraged to participate in key corporate
governance decisions. Sufficient time is allowed for
shareholders to consider the candidates being nominated before
the general meetings.

10. The Company ensures that votes cast are properly counted and

recorded. Voting results are verified by independent scrutineers

and announced in a timely manner after the closure of general
meeting and posted on the Company’s and HKEXnews
websites.

11. Shareholder who has a material interest in the subject
transaction may be required to abstain from voting on the
relevant resolution at the relevant general meeting as required
by the Listing Rules.

Procedures for a shareholder to propose a person for election as a
Director

The general meeting is the principal opportunity and ideal venue for
shareholders to meet and exchange views on the Company’s
business with the Directors and the management.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
Director for election as a Director at an AGM, the shareholder should
deposit a written notice of nomination which shall be given to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s head office within the 7-day
period commencing the day after the despatch of the AGM notice (or
such other period as may be determined and announced by the
Directors from time to time).

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions in the Company’s Articles of Association or
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for shareholders to put
forward new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish
to put forward a new resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, in both
English and Chinese, are available on the Company’s website at
www.ebon.com.hk and the HKEXnews website at www.hkexnews.hk.
There was no significant change to the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2018.

RN

B /A $ﬁ%

IR SRR ()

9. ARFABBMBRLETIBLEERFEIR
Ko RIRRAEHN  BREFRRKEE BE
REZEFEMEIREA -

10. ALRHEREEHFIREFERTHE - KRE
ERABUERELE  UNBRRRETHER
BRI A B R P R AR L N R B o

1. RELWRAY EXHHEEEARRZBRRA
EEABRRAERBEARRRRERE -

BREBMARSRESZRF

BERAG/EENEEEEARR ZBARAREES
RRBERZEEREFIZRIGE -

WA RRAIEEREZBEAIINZ AL ERRBEF
RELREF ZBRREANEKRBFAREBETH
FHEFERRN(RESTHER R AMZ HAhH
) AARRRRERZ ARAMERAREHERR
e

BRRRBRRASREZEBZERF

ARBZABERANARERERARDEL ERR
RBERRSREFRBRNIEN - ERIREFRFE
ENRRABRARBARBRAE -

R

RRNR 2 B ERRE R AR (BIERERAR) R
XA &) 493 www.ebon.com.hk K B 22 AT 4 52 5 48 Uk
www.hkexnews.hk AJ &R - B2 =T — N\F=H
=+ —HALFE  ARRIZABERRE RMAAL

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



OVERVIEW

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in
Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. It
provides an annual summary of the Group’s environmental and
social performance for the financial year ended 31 March 2018. For
corporate governance, please refer to pages 29 to 54.

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT

This Report aims to provide a balanced representation of the Group's
performance in the environmental and social (employment and
labour practices, operating practices and community investment)
aspects and covers the Group’s operations in Hong Kong. The Group
will expand the scope of disclosures when the data collection system
is better established.

The Group’s operations in Hong Kong:

R4

T #6472 AT PR W % — AR AR i

NEW TERRITORIES #i5
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CONTENT OF THIS REPORT RBEHNAR
The content of this Report is defined through a systematic process AHEATZZR—EFZRNIEFMET - B4
including:
e Plan — Identify stakeholders and their interests o HEI— BRI MERRENNE
e Engage — Interact with stakeholders o 2H—HFENELY
*  Make decisions — Use stakeholder input to determine report o  RE — MAKOHEMEHRZEHNEETRER
content "
* Evaluate — Determine the effectiveness of stakeholder «  FHE —EEROHESLERIEELHER
engagement processes
Vision
B =
Strategy and
ma gement approach
= 18
Stakeholder priorities
FOEBRLEBEINZEE
Risk management
[ b & =
KPI, activities and performance
BRERER  BIRXR

ASSURANCE R:&
This Report has been independently verified by the Hong Kong $¥&¢EZ§E%D ERERBURE  BEHER
Quality Assurance Agency, with the scope and basis of the ERNAREREEH—F -
verification set out in the Verification Statement of this Report.
REPORTING RESPONSIBILITY WmEEE

The Board has delegated the environmental and social performance
to an ESG workgroup which comprising of a director of the Group.
The ESG workgroup reports to the Board and the Board has the
overall responsibility for the Group’s sustainability performance and
ESG reporting. The Group is committed to making continuous
improvements on environmental and social aspects and has taken
measures to supervise and implement policies to manage sustainable
development of the Group. Key performance indicators were
identified and monitored for reviews and enhancement plans. This
Report was approved by the Board on 27 June 2018.

EEgCHRERMERAZATRE HERE
BILEE KEBRASE -—REE-RE - HER
EATHARNEFERE MEFSLRATAE
BRI HEERRALERE  HERERRE - A%
BEAORERERMEERMARE L ERIUEG
EBRERBRREEAEENAHERR - Wi
BRUEBEREBRN RERRAE  IEEESFER
HETTHOERT &l - ABMEERZZE-NFRA=-T+
REESEHE -
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SUSTAINABILITY POLICY

At E. Bon, sustainability is embedded in our business operations that
creates sustainable value with its stakeholders in economic,
environmental and social dimensions. The Group has developed a
dedicated sustainability policy which directs its operations towards
the best practice in areas such as business growth, environmental
protection, employment and labour practices, operating practices
and community involvement. The sustainability policy commits the
Group to:

*  Meeting all applicable legal and regulatory requirements on
sustainability issues;

e Pursuing good practices of sustainability in its operations;

e Implementing policies relating to business growth,
environmental protection, workplace quality, operating
practices and community involvement;

e Encouraging our staff to be proactive in sustainability issues;

e Promoting sustainability awareness along its value chain;

e Engaging our stakeholders in the sustainability process; and

e Monitoring and improving the sustainability performance.

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i

FE 2T BBHET
Go the Extra Mile
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SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY

When we execute business strategies, our sustainability vision and
policy enable us to take account of our responsibility to the
environment and society in general. It steers us towards a balance of
stakeholders’ interests in the environment that we operate.

Our ESG matrix:

Stakeholders
HHE

Corporate
Governance &
Business

TEEBRRER

E. Bon
Sustainability

(EESE)
MR R

{ax)

y=E: 4

EEST

EHITEBRBEE - ARENAHERRES MK
HRERMZRERERESEBNEME - W 5[4E
BPERMFNEERETERFOE ZMNNET
fay -

UTRASENERE e REAEREE :

Community Environment

investment

HERE

%

Economy & Society
RERTSE

Although our vision remains consistent, the dynamic nature of
stakeholders’ preferences requires regular review and refinement of
our strategies and risk management procedures to ensure the
fulfilment of stakeholders’ ever-changing needs.

Note: Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers our operations in Hong Kong
only. Our Hong Kong operations represent the core of all of our operations,
contributing over 90% of our Group’s turnover in the financial year ended 31
March 2018.

HAREBOESRBRE— BFOEFRBINE
BEAMME - R AE R - oo B R RES
KEBERER ARG REDETHEENFE
C:

Misk : BREBHBEIN  NIRE HEREAREERELEE
REBOER -BMARBEENEBREBZL  REZE
—E- N\FZA=T-BHUEVBRFERTKSBELEER
AR 8 90% ©
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Plan — Identify stakeholders and their interests

The ESG Workgroup reviewed the appropriateness of the sampling of
stakeholders with reference to the current course of business to make
sure the stakeholders being considered were relevant to the Group.
Findings of the Workgroup were submitted to the management for
discussions and actions where necessary.

The stakeholder engagement process is spread over 3 key phases:

Phase 1: Phase 2:

Key Internal stakeholders Key External stakeholders
engagement engagement

F—PEER : EMEER

EERBREE B EEINEDF D E W

+ Board of Directors « Suppliers
g2 I

« Investors « Customers
=

T 647 4 BB AT PR W % — AR AR i

FE 2T BBHET
Go the Extra Mile

RipESHE

8 — BASHERBENFE

RE - -HEgEATHEAZZRNEBRNBTH
EMENA BN - URRATE B0 & BALE
E1ER - TIFEMASERSERZEEEHRER
BRETTR W RITE -

\

FhE2ARERE AT 2MRE

Phase 3:

Other stakeholders
engagement
FE=PEER :
HetiFn & A

« Other relevant parties
(such as other ESG practitioners)

organisations and
community
BB RAEEAL
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (CONT'D)

Engage — Interact with stakeholders

To identify our reportable material aspects, we carried out an on-
going process of stakeholder engagement. Materiality assessment was
conducted to identify important issues to both internal and external
stakeholders of the Group by questionnaire. Material topics include
issues that have a direct or indirect impact on the Group’s ability to
create, preserve or erode economic, environmental and social value
of itself, its stakeholders and society at large. This process enables us
to categorise various groups of stakeholders into an engagement
matrix: (1) engage, (2) communicate and (3) inform stakeholders.

The following matrix outlines the perspectives of key internal and

key external stakeholders of the Group based on the materiality
assessments conducted over the past two years.

High concern

ath %
FEEE o Operating Performance @ Supplier Environmental Assessments
SERR HEFRETE
e 0 Localﬁlgestments @ ggoygérggé%em Relations
o o e Market Presence m Recruitment & Retention
@ 0 WHERR BERREAT
o Compliance @ Employee Benefits
(29) o O &% {EREN
Procurement Practices Employment Diversity
4 0 © (5] @ ooy
= REBER [ EFHI
()
=} m o Research & Development @ Occupational Safety and Health
) i BEZ2RER
% ?g e o Customer Satisfaction @ Career Development and Training
= "EE m EFREE BXBRRE
& Ha @ @ C“;;méf Privacy @ Labour Practices
— #o B ST
g = @ Raw Materials Q Gender Equality
i3] @ @ FRE HETE
& @ Social Grievance Mechanisms
@ e HERERRES
@ Supplier Social Assessments
@ @@ @ @ Energy Consumption and Management BEFLETE
@ @ HERRRERER @ Product and Service Responsibility
Greenhouse Gas Emission ERRBRBEE
@ @ @ REREHR @ Local Community and Charity Involvement
Water Resource Management ApHEREESH
KERER
Low concern — High concern @) Air Pollution Prevention
BB FERBE SRS
Internal Stakeholders @ vose Management
REFDE
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (CONT'D)

Engage — Interact with stakeholders (cont'd)

The Group identified 31 material issues related to its business
operations. Through the materiality assessment, five issues were
identified to have significant impacts by stakeholders, namely,
customer satisfaction, market presence, operating performance,
procurement practices, product and service responsibility. The
assessment results were discussed and validated by the management
of the Group. The Group has decided to prioritise its sustainability
efforts on people issues where the Group has a relatively high
sustainability impact.

Make decisions — Use stakeholder input to determine report
content

During the year, the Group identified stakeholders’ priorities to work
on over the coming year:

e Continue policy enhancement

> Review our current policies on major ESG subject areas of
customer service and supplier management

> Complete the collection of data in order to make
comparisons feasible

e Increase disclosure coverage

> Increase the disclosure in key performance indicators (KPI)
where material

Evaluate — Determine the effectiveness of stakeholder engagement
processes

The management is responsible to review the stakeholder
engagement process to ensure a sufficient coverage of stakeholders
and issues. Feedback of publication of ESG report is also included in
the evaluation process.

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i

FE 2T BBHET
Go the Extra Mile
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SUSTAINABILITY MEASUREMENT AND MONITORING

The Group adopted Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules as the
sustainability measurement framework. During the year, the Group
enhanced data collection approaches and recorded certain key
performance indicators (KPIs) as stated in Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules. KPIs were measured and recorded regularly by the ESG
workgroup. The Group has set target to full disclosures by 2020. The
Group would go beyond minimum disclosure requirements where
appropriate.

Sustainability performance data was analysed. Both KPIs and analysis
were reported to the management for discussion and establishment
of improvement plans. Improvement targets were made with
reference to the performance recorded for the year ended 31 March
2017 (the “Baseline”).

ENVIRONMENT

The Group endeavours to minimise pollution and protect the
environment by conserving natural resources, reducing the use of
energy and waste. We first implement business activities for which
we bear responsibility and addressing the environmental issues by
integrating environment considerations in our business. We create
environmental awareness amongst our staff members and whenever
possible and practical to do so. Our aim is to contribute to the
sustainable future and be in harmony with the global environment.

A1 Emissions

Our electricity consumption accounts for a major part of its GHG
emissions, with local transport contributing less than 5% of the total
GHG emission. Measures aimed at improving energy efficiency are
outlined on page 64.

Deliveries to the same district are gathered in bundles to minimise
travel routes, hence reduce the use of petrol and emissions to air. In
addition, we encourage our staff to use public transport; for those
that are not accessible by public transport means, to carpool when
travelling on business. Discharges to water are made through public
sewages system. There was no discharge to water and/or land. There
was no prosecution to the Group in relation to air emissions during
the year.
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A1 Emissions (cont'd)

The Group pays attention to hazardous waste such as e-waste. We
have implemented plans to reduce the quantity of e-waste as
outlined on page 66. Disposal of hazardous waste is conducted
safely in accordance to relevant regulations. There was no
prosecution to the Group in relation to hazardous waste handling
during the year.

Non-hazardous waste is sorted in accordance with the possibility of
re-use and recycling. Materials such as paper are collected by
recyclers. There was no prosecution to the Group in relation to non-
hazardous waste handling during the year.

FE 2T BBHET
Go the Extra Mile

BRI ()

AR ()

AEBEERETHUREAZTEREY - AT
ML EFURHE  FHARAREF6AEF
EEFRVEKBEBAGNZZRE - RAFE - A&
B 2 AR E R YR IE AR o

BERZWATER] R EREE] AL RAIK
DI e MIREMB A R EREEU - RAFE - A%
B 2 2B R E R R YR IR AR AR o

Total air emissions (Scope 1) (tonnes) BERPE e E (5E 1) () 0.006 0.006*
NOXx (tonnes) RE(c () 0.006 0.006>
SOx (tonnes) Fdt (W) 0.000 0.000?
Particulate matter (tonnes) FOFRF (W) 0.000 0.000?

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2) (CO,e tonnes) BEREINEE (B8E 1 R2) (AR EN) 1,453.582 800.566
Direct emissions (Scope 1) (CO»e tonnes) EEHEN(FE 1) (ZabiE 20) 0.018 13.039
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) (COse tonnes) RHEHE (B 2) (ZE LIk E 2) 1,453.564 789.644
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) per floor area (CO.e tonnes/m?) BAEEmEENRER(8E2)

(ZElemEEm,/ FHK) 0.147 0.084
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) per employee BHEENMEER(BE2)
(COse tonnes/employee) (Z&lmEen,/ #8) 10.236 5.849
Total emissions (Scope 1 and 2) per floor area BEmEENREE (BE1k2)
(COse tonnes/m’) (Z&AchE 8WFI7K) 0.147 0.086
Total emissions (Scope 1 and 2) per employee BREENHMEE (BE1Kk2)
(COse tonnes/employee) (Z&ftEENB8) 10.236 5.946

Total hazardous waste produced (tonnes)? AEBEENELRE (W)’

Total non-hazardous waste produced (tonnes) MEREEYELSEE () 8.345 10.538
Total non-hazardous waste produced per floor area (tonnes/m?) BUBAEEMEEREEENEE (B FHK) 0.001 0.001
Total non-hazardous waste produced per employee BEREFELREEEYLE (B EE)

(tonnes/employee) 0.059 0.078
Total non-hazardous waste recycled (tonnes) BEFZFNEREE (W) 0.680 N/A T8

! Data was reported in the 2017 Annual Report. Certain figures have been
restated in this ESG report after data consolidation.

2 The annual data is obtained by projection.

3 Disposal of hazardous waste is negligible.

N/A = not applicable
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A2 Use of Resources

Electricity

Starting from January 2016, we have been phasing out old air-
conditioners by energy-saving ones. Indoor temperature remains at
23°C-25°C.

Besides, old halogen lamps in shops have also been gradually
replaced by LED spotlights. It consumes less energy, helps lower the
indoor temperature (which requires less air-conditioning) but
maintains approximate brightness. We are planning to phase out
fluorescent lightings from T8 to T5 which consumes less energy.

Our promotional light boxes go automatically off from midnight to
morning to reduce energy consumption.

The Group has set target to reduce the total energy consumption per
employee by 10% by 2020 from the Baseline.

IRIE (8)

A2EREH
gl

BT REF— H»t BAEESAAEAZR &

MmEAEEER - ERVEEHERIEN23°CE25°C e
AN EEPRNERARBIRCESEHRAELED BN

& o LED BB BERB AR - ABRBREENRE

(LA WEHBIEENRE - |RIETEIE
SRHEREE LR TS S EE T8 58 e & o

BPWEREERNTREE LA - ARDH
IRHFE

AEECDREER - REGR _T=ZF - BUEE
BERHRE R E R 10% °
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FE 2T BBHET
Go the Extra Mile

BRI ()

A2 Use of Resources (cont’d) A2ERERM ()

Water 7k

Water consumed is for hygienic purpose. Labels of ‘treasure every — SEKTIBIEFEME - KEBRFBEROLE
drop’ are posted at prominent place next to taps to encourage staff BB [EEEEH | F%K  SBEITREFDAK-
members to minimise the use of water. We plan to replace old taps ~ FiMIat &8 &K BEA BB E A KEERE - WH
with sensor-type and add flow regulators to control water flow when — AITTEVER TAREREFEHRIZEGIKRE - (FAR
feasible. As a supplier of home fittings, we provide a range of FEERMHER - HMMHISHESFRRER(RR
products with green features (eco-sensor, flow regulator, smart green — RifE2S - TEFETES - BREIRIRRZAT) o

design) to the market.

ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

Total energy consumption (MWh) sEREFEE KR 1,095.583 1,072.726°
Total direct energy consumption (MWh) HiZpREEE KER) 61.860° 42.9997
Total direct energy consumption per floor area (MWh/m?) BUEARENERERERECKREFHXK) 0.006 0.0057
Total direct energy consumption per employee (MWh/employee) SHREEMNERGREEE CKAK EE) 0.436 0.3197
Total indirect energy consumption (MWh) B ReEE kRE) 1,033.723 1,029.726
Total indirect energy consumption per floor area (MWh/m?) B IEEEENBZELRARES KRR FhX) 0.104 0.110
Total indirect energy consumption per employee (MWh/employee) FREENEELRAREE kR ESR) 7.280 7.628

Water consumption (m’) EREKE (IFK) 1,150.139 1,085.720
Water consumption per floor area (m¥/m?) BRBAEENARKE CIHK/ FHXK) 0.116 0.116
Water consumption per employee (m*/employee) BEEEMEAKE (LHKEE) 8.100 8.042

Total packaging material (tonnes) BEMEEE () 4.352 9.293
Total packaging material per floor area (tonnes/m?) BETmENBENEEE (B, FhX) 0.000 N/A i
Total packaging material per employee (tonnes/employee) FEEEMREVHAE (W, ESR) 0.031 N/A T

4 Data was reported in the 2017 Annual Report. ‘ BERER-_F—LFFRA -
s Certain calculation is estimated based on half-year data. s ETREEREFBE MR -

o Figure calculated with reference to IOR Australia. o EFIRIKIOR AustraliazT & ©

7 The calculation is estimated based on half-year data. 7 UEET EENF FEIB A -

N/A = not applicable N/A =T
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
Electricity: Reduction
Details of electricity reduction is set out on page 64.

Paper: Reduction

All office paper and almost all paper for printing the Group's
publications are Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)-certified or
recycled paper, except old publication (such as catalogues) which is
yet to disseminate. Not only adopting FSC certified paper, the Group
encourages the use of paperless communication. If printing is
necessary, we encourage environmentally friendly printing manner
(such as to print on both sides, reduce font size and margin). For
internal reference document, we upload to intranet or circulate
hardcopies instead of printing one copy for each staff member. In
addition, paper collection tray is placed next to printer to gather
single-side-printed paper for re-use.

Our box packaging fits the size of goods so as to minimise the use of
paper and provide the best protection to the goods contained. The
materials of our carton boxes fulfil relevant safety standards. Besides,
we encourage the use of carton boxes for multiple times.

o FSC is an independent, non-governmental, not for profit organisation
established to promote environmentally appropriate, socially beneficial, and
economically viable management of the world’s forests.

Electronic devices: Re-use

Technology advancement leads to shorter lifespan of electronic
devices. Certain equipment becomes obsolete or incompatible to our
operations after software upgrades. We are aware of potential
environmental and health hazards related to disposal of e-waste.
Hence, we have adopted the following initiative:

e Obsolete: Donate to non-governmental organisations such as
Hong Kong Caritas Computer Recycle Project
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8 Data was reported in the 2017 Annual Report. ¢ BERER T —LFEFRA -
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SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group believes its success, long-term growth and development
depend upon the quality, performance and commitment of its staff
members. We are committed to providing equal opportunity to our
staff, matching the right people with the right job, and offering them
a suitable platform to develop and excel in their career. Besides, we
keep in mind to treat all staff members fairly and equally. We are
committed to the provision of a healthy and safe workplace and
encourage work-life balance of staff members.

B1 Employment
As at 31 March 2018, our workforce in operations in Hong Kong was
recorded at 142 employees.

Our employment policy adheres to statutory requirements including
but not limited to the Mandatory Provident Fund, Statutory Minimum
Wages, Employees’ Compensation Insurance and Paid Annual Leave.
Competitive packages are offered to attract, retain and motivate
competent individuals. We are dedicated to promoting equal
opportunities for all of our employees in different areas, including
recruitment, compensation and benefits, training, staff promotion and
transfer. All staff members are assessed based on their ability,
performance and contribution, irrespective of their gender, age,
disability, family status, race, religious beliefs or sexual orientation.

We provide employee benefits such as subsidised medical scheme
and travel allowance. The Group supports the staff’s family life by
providing children’s scholarship. The Group has joined the
Government’s gender mainstreaming network ‘Gender Focal Point’.
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SOCIAL (coNT'D) a4 €
Employment and Labour Practices (cont’d) ERERETER (&)
B1 Employment (cont’d) B1 1% (&)

All of our staff members work on full time basis. Our workforce is AEBEETHAZEET » HMAKWMT :

comprised of:

Age group F # 48 5

 Below 30

| 30-50

Bl Over 50

Gender % 5

B Male B2i

[ Female &M

~ [
=+UT
=tERT
BT+ il

[ 0-3 years EE=F

M >3-5years ADR=ZFERF
B >5-10years PREFZE+HF
B >10-15years PRTEE+REF
B > 15 years BB+AF
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B2 Health and Safety

Our workplace is kept clean and tidy, with adequate work space for
staff members to work in. Apart from that, a number of initiatives
have been carried out to increase the staff awareness in health and
safety at work:

e Occupational safety briefing

> Guide new staff members especially those work in
warehouse or go to construction sites

> Staff members are able to stop work if they feel unsafe or
is not properly trained

e Staff handbook (detailing employees’ benefits and welfare,
holiday and leave, working hours, feedback mechanisms)

All staff members, before going to construction sites, have attended
safety training. When entering construction sites, they are equipped
with safety helmet and briefed by relevant safety officers.

B3 Development and Training

The Group maintains an open, interactive and motivating working
environment for our staff members. The management reviews its
training and career development programmes with employees. Set
out below are some training and development programmes:

e Sales and product training
> Overseas training: Visit factory overseas
> In-house training: Across senior to junior sales
representatives

*  Management training

> For directors and senior management team to keep them
abreast of the latest regulatory requirements, corporate
governance practices, macro-economics and consumer
trends

e Warehouse operation training
e Back office operation training
B4 Labour Standards

We comply with local employment regulations in all locations of our
operations, and do not engage in any forced or child labour.
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Operating Practices

B5 Supply Chain Management

Our customers include contractors, property developers and dealers.
We recognise the uniqueness of requirements of each customer, and
offer a full range of products to satisfy customers’ needs.

The number of major suppliers, in terms of purchase amount, by
geographical region is indicated as below:

MAJOR SUPPLIERS
TEHEBD

We pay attention to the operating practices of our suppliers
(including but not limited to employment practices, product
responsibility, anti-corruption policy). We regularly conduct factory
visits to inspect their production capacity, technical capability,
quality control systems, production facilities, testing capability and
personnel quality.

In view of the growing environmental awareness in Hong Kong, we
requested for green features in our products, such as water flow
control and FSC-certified materials. We will continue our efforts in
bringing environmentally friendly products to customers.
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Operating Practices (cont'd)

B5 Supply Chain Management (cont’d)

In selecting installation sub-contractors, we consider a range of
factors such as price, past performance, the scale of the project,
technical competence, environmental records, workplace health and
safety standards. Training sessions are held to help sub-contractors
familiarise with the features and installation techniques of our
products. We conduct appraisals to evaluate sub-contractors’
performance.

B6 Product Responsibility

The Group’s objective is to become one of the leading quality
suppliers of architectural builder’s hardware, bathroom, kitchen
collections and furniture. Our goal is to enhance the brand value of
the Group by managing customers’ expectation of getting products
that commensurate with their lifestyles. We strive to provide quality
products and services to fulfil customers’ needs; and to establish the
brand and reputation of our Group for customers’ recognition of our
ability to serve them with two fundamental qualities, “sincerity” and
“quality” which would enable us to build customer loyalty, allowing
us to establish strong customer relationships for future businesses.

Product safety is our primary concern. The majority of our products
originate from Europe where rigorous product testing regulations and
requirements are in place. Nevertheless, we carry out a number of
measures to ensure product safety, such as warranties and certificates
from manufacturers, tests according to customers’ requirements.

Apart from safety, we also value performance ratings and feedback
from customers, of which feedback identifies areas of improvement.
We have established various communication channels including
corporate website and social media platforms to facilitate and
strengthen communication with our customers. Feedback from
customers is discussed and improvement will be made where
appropriate. Our labelling and advertising materials are reviewed to
ascertain their compliance with relevant marketing communication
practices.

We comply with the latest Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance,
ensuring that the customer information we receive is only used for its
intended purpose. We regularly brief our staff, especially front-line
staff, to take great care in dealing with privacy matters. We have
gradually placed our privacy statement on corporation publications.
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Operating Practices (cont'd)

B7 Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
integrity when doing business. We adopt the code of conduct that
complies with HKEX expectations on corporate governance and the
Independent Commission Against Corruption’s anti-corruption
policies. Our staff handbook has outlined such code of conduct to all
staff members including prevention of bribery. There was no legal
case brought against the Group for corruption during the year.

Subcontract works are made in accordance with the standard
procedure of the Group. Once having received the quotations from
potential contractors, we evaluate each based on a range of factors
such as: price, past performance, the scale of the project, technical
competence, environmental records, workplace health and safety
standards. Decisions on subcontract appointments are reviewed and
endorsed by the management of the Group.
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Community

B8 Community Investments

The Group is committed to be an active participant in the local
community wherever it operates. Our participation to the community
does not limit to donations but also voluntary works. We also
encourage its employees to do the same to contribute to their
neighbourhood. A care to the society will eventually benefit our
future generations.
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FEEDBACK TO THIS REPORT

We welcome comments and suggestions regarding our
environmental and social performance for continuous improvement.
Stakeholders may at any time send their written enquiries and
concerns to the ESG Representative of the Company at its Head
Office as follows:

ESG Representative

16th-18th Floors

First Commercial Building

33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

esg@ebon.com.hk

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i

HARENESR

REBOE R ERFEE T EEORE R E
RH - REELRES - FHETHNREIRS 2B
ARERAEIZEETARRNENER ARR
5 HERERNE  AmT

RE  HEREGREK

BB

RREEEE 3355
FEENE
16-1818

esg@ebon.com.hk



74

Environmental, Social and Governance Report %% - T & REEG#RE

HONG KONG (&ALITY ASSURANCE AGENCY
——

VERIFICATION STATEMENT

Scope and Objective

Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency (“HKQAA”) has been
commissioned by E. Bon Holdings Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“E. Bon Holdings”) to undertake a limited assurance engagement in
respect of the selected information of Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Report (the “Report”). Our verification processes
are limited to the Report stating E. Bon Holdings’ ESG performance
and achievements from Tst April 2017 to 31st March 2018 (the
“Reporting Period”).

The aim of this verification is to undertake a limited assurance
engagement of the selected information stated in the Report with
reference to the “Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Reporting Guide” pursuant to Appendix 27 to Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Main Board Listing Rules”).

This report has been prepared on the basis of the data and
information provided by E. Bon Holdings. Therefore, E. Bon Holdings
is liable and responsible for the preparation of the ESG report,
including but not limited to any material misrepresentation, arising
out of fraud or error. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Methodology
The verification process was undertaken with reference to:

° International Standard on Assurance Engagement (ISAE) 3000
(Revised) — “Assurance Engagement Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” issued by the
International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board; and

o The “Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Reporting
Guide” pursuant to Appendix 27 to Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Main Board Listing Rules”).
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VERIFICATION STATEMENT (CONT'D)

The process included, inter alia, reviewing the internal data
collection and management mechanism, interviewing responsible
personnel with accountability for preparing the Report. Meanwhile,
examining the raw data and supporting evidence of representative
samples of data as well as information selected for verification would
be conducted by a risk-based approach.

Our assurance engagement was with respect to the Reporting Period
information only and we have not performed any procedures with
respect to earlier periods or any other irrelevant elements include in
the 2017/2018 Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Report and, therefore, do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

Independence

At all material times, HKQAA is independent from E. Bon Holdings
in terms of its engagement in collecting and calculating the reporting
data, and/or any development of the Report, save from verification
process.

Limitation and Exclusions

The verification is carried out only on the basis of the data and
information provided by E. Bon Holdings, with the assumption of
completeness and truthfulness.

The following items are excluded from the scope of work:

e Any information not directly linked to the selected
environmental, social and governance data;

e Activities outside the defined reporting period;
e Company strategy and position statements (including any
expression of opinion, belief, aspiration, expectation, aim or

future intention); and

e  Financial data which is taken from E. Bon Holdings’ Annual
Report and Accounts.
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VERIFICATION STATEMENT (CONT'D)

Assurance Conclusion

Based on our verification, nothing has come to our attention that
causes us to believe that E. Bon Holdings’ verified information for the
Reporting Period is not prepared, in all material aspects, with
reference to the “Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Reporting Guide” pursuant to Appendix 27 to Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Main Board Listing Rules”).

Signed on behalf of Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency

Bryan Peng
Assistant Director, Manufacturing & Service
July 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report 1 3z 1% 26 4R &
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To the Members of E.Bon Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of E.Bon Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 88 to
157, which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2018;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

" PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

e Provision for inventory obsolescence

e Provision for impairment of trade and retention receivables

e Recognition of contract revenue
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (coNT'D)

Key Audit Matter

Provision for inventory obsolescence

Refer to notes 2.12 and 4.1 to the consolidated financial statements
for the disclosures of the related accounting policies, judgements and
estimates.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group held inventories of HK$168 million.

The Group determines the net realisable value (“NRV”) at each
period end based on the estimated selling price less cost to sell and
the estimated quantity to be sold in the future. It requires significant
judgements and assumptions to be made to determine the estimated
selling price and sales quantity of individual products, including
historical experience of selling products of similar nature, current
market conditions and other available information. The estimations
are also subject to uncertainties as a result of future changes of
market trends, customer demands and fashion trends.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We understood, evaluated and tested the key controls by which
management estimated the NRV, and found the assessment processes
to be consistent with those of the prior years.

For products with material balances as at year end, we discussed
with management and evaluated the assumptions on estimated future
sales, which are based on (i) secured orders received from customers
as at year end; (ii) historical sales data in the past two years; and (iii)
future sales strategies that may require adjustments to the historical
sales pattern for the selected products.

We obtained evidence for these explanation and evaluated the
relevance of these factors by using our industry knowledge. We
tested, on a sample basis, the secured orders from customers and
NRV of products by comparing the estimated selling price and sales
quantity of individual products with the corresponding post year-end
sales data.

We considered these assumptions appropriate based on the
procedures performed above.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (coNT'D)

Key Audit Matter (cont’d)

Impairment of trade and retention receivables

Refer to notes 2.10 and 4.2 to the consolidated financial statements
for the disclosures of the related accounting policies, judgements and
estimates.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had trade and retention receivables
of HK$142 million.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired.

For trade and retention receivables that are individually significant,
management estimates impairment by considering ageing,
creditability of individual customers and their past payment records.

For trade and retention receivables that are individually insignificant,
management estimates impairment by considering ageing and bad
debt history of the Group collectively.

The recoverability assessment on the trade and retention receivables
involves significant judgement by management. The estimations are
significant to the consolidated financial statements and are subject to
uncertainties as a result of future changes of economies and
customers’ financial positions.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We understood, evaluated and tested the key controls by which
management assesses impairment, and found the assessment
processes to be consistent with those of the prior years.

We tested the accuracy of the ageing report of trade and retention
receivables on a sample basis by tracing to invoices.

We scrutinised the ageing report and focused on the receivables that
have been past due but not impaired. We discussed with
management as to the recoverability of balances. Where settlement
was made by these debtors subsequent to the year end, we tested on
a sample basis of the settlement by tracing to bank receipt records.

For overdue receivables which are individually significant, we further
corroborated management’s explanations by checking to
correspondence between the customers and the Group and past
payment records.

We consider the judgements applied in the recoverability assessment

by management were reasonable based on the procedures
performed.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (coNT'D)

Key Audit Matter (cont'd)

Recognition of contract revenue

Refer to notes 2.22(b) and 4.3 to the consolidated financial
statements for the disclosures of the related accounting policies,
judgements and estimates.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, revenue from construction
contracts amounted to HK$72 million.

Revenue and gross profit margin are recognised based on the stage of
completion of individual contract, and the amounts are determined
by reference to independent surveys of work performed or
completion of a physical proportion of the contract work, depending
on the terms and information available for the construction contract.
Management assesses the status of contract at each period end. The
amount of revenue to be recognised for each in-progress contract
involves significant judgement in determining the percentage of
completion as at year end.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We understood, evaluated and tested the key controls by which
management recognised contract revenue based on the percentage
of completion, and found the assessment processes to be consistent
with those of the prior years.

We selected in-progress projects that either the recognised revenue
during the year or the unrecognised revenue as at year end is
individually significant. We assessed the stage of completion of these
in-progress projects by tracing to the contracts (such as contract sum,
terms and conditions), internal status reports and external evidence
such as surveyors’ reports.

We consider the estimates made by management were reasonable
based on the procedures performed.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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OTHER INFORMATION (CONT'D)

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Lap Yam.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 June 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #H&2HEWKEHE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZE=Z-NF=A=+-BLEE

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains, net
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs, net

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss

Exchange gain/(loss) on translation of

financial statements of
foreign operations
Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Surplus on revaluation of properties
held for own use
Tax effect relating to revaluation of
properties held for own use
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Notes
M

10

13

16

25

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
584,720 505,981
(345,419) (294,542)
239,301 211,439
994 996
117 5,124
(109,134) (97,091)
(76,898) (69,679)
54,380 50,789
99 619
(897) (1,005)
(798) (386)
53,582 50,403
(9,388) (8,096)
44,194 42,307
2,884 (1,734)
25,497 20,966
(4,207) (3,459)

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



FE 2T BIRET
Go the Extra Mile

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #H&2HEWKEHE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZ=Z-NF=A=+-BLEE

Other comprehensive income

for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to equity

holders of the Company

Earnings per share (expressed in

HK cents per share)
— Basic and diluted

The notes on pages 95 to 157 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2018 R=Z-N&E=A=+—-H

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment E VNG
Investment properties REWE
Deferred income tax assets BIEFEHEE
Trade, retention and other receivables  EWBEER - EIIRE X
HoAth FE IR
Current assets RENEE
Inventories 7E
Current income tax recoverable AJ Uy [O] AN B P 1S R
Trade, retention and other receivables  FEURRF: - FEUIRZE 3k
H At FE R
Restricted cash ZIRHIR®
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEHEY
Total assets BEE
EQUITY %

Equity attributable to equity holders ARRREERGERES
of the Company

Share capital A
Reserves {8
Total equity HiEs

K

&

Notes
M

16
17
25

20

19

20
21
22

26
27

= N

mEMBRRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FTT
189,735 165,666
36,100 32,700
4,491 2,618
18,070 10,418
248,396 211,402
168,497 146,058
1,973 6,131
171,780 136,587
3,008 2,981
62,357 79,706
407,615 371,4_6_3_
656,011 582,865
60,060 60,060
419,151 371,804
479,211 431,864
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2018 R=Z-NE=A=+-H

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Receipts in advance
Borrowings
Current income tax liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Other provision
Deferred income tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

afE

REBAE
JEASY AR R B Atk FE A 3R
TEU R

&R

AHFRERAE

FRBEE
Hib B m
BEEFREHAE

waefE

HWERRAE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 88 to 157 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2018 and were

signed on its behalf.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
B EE
Director

E

The notes on pages 95 to 157 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+tF

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BfaE FET FH&TT
23 51,300 43,041
51,328 47,175

24 41,382 38,115
7,392 3,252

151,402 131,583

2,500 -

25 22,898 19,418
25,398 19,418

________ 176,800 151,001
656,011 582,865
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TSE Sun Po, Tony
HHE
Director

E
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #H&REZ8EH%

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BEZE=Z—NF=ZA=+—-HLFE

Share Share Revaluation ~ Merger ~ Capital Exchange  Statutory ~ Retained
capital  premium reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings Total
BA BOEE ERRE  AMEE  AAEE  ENRE  ATEE  REEN GE
HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL  TEn TEL TAT TEL TAT TAL TAT TEL

At 1 April 2016 R=Z-~50A-A 30,030 31,231 105,340 6,979 2,896 1,308 2171 244,880 424,835

Profit for the year EERA - - - - - -
Other comprehensive income  E 2 El#
Exchange loss on translation  EEENEBHBRE

of financial statements of ZERES

foreign operations - - - - - (1,734 - - (1,734)
Surplus on revaluation of RiEERNR ik

0307 42307

properties held for own use - - 20,966 - - - - - 20,966
Tax effect relating to BEERBANE

revaluation of properties hEzE

held for own use - - (3,459) - - - - - (3,459)
Total comprehensive income 2 K43 - - 17,507 - - (1,734) - 42,307 58,080
Issue of bonus shares (note 26)  ATR&317 (i3t 26) 30,030 (30,030 - - - - - - -
Dividends (note 14(a)) R 8 (3 14() - - - - - - - (51,051)  (51,051)
Appropriation to EEEREA R (1 27)

statutory reserve (note 27) - - - - - - (43) 4 -
Transactions with owners HfEEZR % 30,030 (30,030) - - - - (43)  (51,008)  (51,051)
At 31 March 2017 R-E-t&£=A=1-H 60,060 1,201 122,847 6,979 2,896 (426) 2,128 236,179 431,864

The notes on pages 95 to 157 are an integral part of these £95%157 EZMERILFHRE HHERE 5 °
consolidated financial statements.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZ=Z-NF=A=+-BLEE

At1 April 2017 R=2-t¥mA-A
Profit for the year EEER
Other comprehensive income ~ Efti 2
Exchange gain on translation of &I EHH BHRE
financial statements of ZER W
foreign operations
Surplus on revaluation of BrERNEERE

properties held for own use

Tax effect relating to revaluation of BEIZ(EE AN

properties held for own use hEyE
Total comprehensive income 2 ERHA

Dividends (note 14(a)) TR 8 (M3 14(a)

Appropriation to statutory reserve £ G A B (1¥27)
(note 27)

Transactions with owners AfEEZRS

At 31 March 2018 RZB-NFZB=+-8H

TFEZIT #BHRET

Go the Extra Mile

RERZEER

Share Share  Revaluation Merger Capital Exchange Statutory Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
Re  ROEE  EMREE  AHERE  ERRE ENRR  AERE REER aif
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TER AR TER TER AR TER TR AR
60,060 1,201 122,847 6,979 2,896 (426) 2,128 236,179 431,804
- - - - - - - 44,194 44,194
- - - - - 2,884 - - 2,884
- - 25,497 - - - - - 25,497
- - (4,207) - - - - - 4,207)
- - 21,290 - - 2,884 - 44,194 68,368
- - - - - - - (21,021) (21,021)
- - - - - - 27 27) -
- - - - - - 27 (21,048) (21,021)
60,060 1,201 144,137 6,979 2,896 2,458 2,155 259,325 479,211

The notes on pages 95 to 157 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZE=Z-NF=A=+-BLEE

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for settlement
of forward contracts
Purchase of property,
plant and equipment
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings
Interest paid on bank borrowings
Proceeds from/(repayment of)

trust receipt loans
Increase in restricted cash
Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year

Exchange gain/(loss) on cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year

The notes on pages 95 to 157 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Notes
P

RETBH2RERE
REEFE RS
ERFTEH

28(a)
WEETHEEFRE
REZBZRERE
RHBAHRENTR
BEWME - WE&&E
BEF B
KREETBMAFRE
RMEIE2RERE
BRFTSRIE
EEER
B RITIERFE
SHWEERZ B
I8/ (B
Z PR 38210
BRIRE
REBEEBFR TSRS

RERRELEWTRD

FORE MR FEDY

Re kR SEYEL RS (BR)

FERASMREEHEY
22

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT
11,741 44,606
(3,753) (12,064)
7,988 32,542
- (584)
(8,446) (6,586)
56 44
(8,390) (7,126)
6,112 12,151
(15,675) (21,464)
(897) (1,005)
12,830 (11,423)
(27) (15)
(21,021) (51,051)
(18,678) (72,807)
(19,080) (47,391)
79,706 127,781
1,731 (684)
62,357 79,706

F5 =157 AZHARUEGFAMBRE D
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZ=Z-NF=A=+-BLEE

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

E. Bon Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its
principal place of business is 16th—18th Floors, First
Commercial Building, 33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong. Its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the importing,
wholesale, retail and installation of architectural builders’
hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture in Hong
Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated. These consolidated
financial statements have been approved for issue by the board
of directors on 27 June 2018.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of E. Bon Holdings
Limited have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of leasehold land and
buildings held for own use and investment properties,
which are carried at fair values.

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i
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% Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##&BEHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BEZE=Z—NF=ZA=+—-HLFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEESSHE#SR@®

POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont'd) 2.1 RREE(E)
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with REBEEEMBREENREM B RERA
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting ERETEZRTHE TEEEEHR
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its ERARESTBREITERLHE -
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s REEHEREME - REBRE AR
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree HRAMBREAMEBEAZRE - 1
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions Bt 4 IR -

and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.

(@) The following new standards and amendments to (@ TFHISEFED KERNSETA T8
standards are mandatory for the first time for the BRER—F—LF-A—HKZ
financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2017 & FIA 2 M E B R ERAN - 1
but they have no significant impact to the Group’s AR B 0 EE R BSARERK
results and financial position or are not currently BEAFEH AN NEANAEE :

relevant to the Group:

Amendment to HKAS 7  Disclosure initiative BB ER WEEFH A
F7FIERT A
Amendment to HKAS 12 Recognition of deferred tax EREEHEL ERAER
assets for unrealised losses F12EFIA  EEZEL
HEEE
Amendment to HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interest in BBMBERE TN HAM
other entities AERIZE 12 55 BRI ER
BRI AR

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



FEZ1T BHRET
Go the Extra Mile

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHBEHME®W)
POLICIES (coNT'D)
2.1 Basis of preparation (cont'd) 2.1 RREEE)
(b) New standards, amendments to standards and by EBEEMEARZZT—N\F—A—H=%

ZIEFA 2 MRFEE R ARER A
EIRFRMAZAED - EAEFTA

interpretations have been issued but are effective for
the financial year beginning on or after 1 January

2018 and have not been early adopted:

Amendment to HKAS 19
BAEGIEAFE 1957ERT R
Amendment to HKAS 28
BEGIEAE 28RERT AR
Amendment to HKAS 40

BB GRIERE 40 BRI A
Amendment to HKFRS 1
BAVBWERERE 1 HBETA
Amendment to HKFRS 2

BN BREERE 2 FIBFT R
Amendment to HKFRS 4

R BREERNF 4FEFTA

HKFRS 9
EREMBREEANEIR

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

BAVBRELAFE 105 R
BRGTERIE 28 BRI A
HKFRS 15

BN BREERE 155
HKFRS 16
BAVBRMELEAE 165
HKFRS 17
BAEVBMELRE 175

Amendments to HKFRSs
BRMBREEIET A
HK(IFRIC)22

B (ERMBEREREZES)
—FRBE 2

HK(IFRIC)23

B (EARMBHRERREES)
—dBE23%

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i

TR

Employee benefits

RERF

Investments in associates and joint ventures

REE LB RAERRNRE

Transfers of investment property

REMEMEZ

First time adoption of HKFRS

HIRRANBBSEHREEA

Classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions

PAB D RERON R Z DB RATE

Applying HKFRS 9 financial instruments with HKFRS 4
insurance contracts

EREEMBREEFEIREMIA
REBHBHREENE 4 KRB

Financial instruments

TRTA

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture

REZLEHBENARAENRIZMNEELERTE

Revenue from contracts with customers

REFEFPAONKRE

Leases

iz

Insurance contracts

RBEH

Annual improvement to HKFRSs 2015-2017 cycle
ERMBREEN _F-AFE_TLFRHEzFRNE
Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

SN 5 RIEX (B

Uncertainty over income tax treatments

RSB E  TREE I

Effective for

annual periods
beginning on

or after

RT3 A#H 2%
MRz FERREXR

1 January 2019
—Z-NF—A—AH
1 January 2018
—E-)\$—HA—H
1 January 2018
—Z-N\$—H—H
1 January 2018
—Z-)\£—A—AH
1 January 2018
—E-)\$—HA—H
1 January 2018

—E-N\$—-H—H
1 January 2018

~2-\%-A-H

To be determined
W EETE

1 January 2018

—T-N\$—-A—H
1 January 2019
—E-NF-A—H
1 January 2021
—F_—-F—-A—H
1 January 2018
—T-N\¥$—-A—H
1 January 2018
—F-\¥—-A—H

1 January 2019
e =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZ=%F—

2

NE=ZA=t-BLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.1

Basis of preparation (cont'd)
(cont’d)

(b)

Notes:

(i)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

The new standard addresses the classification, measurement
and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities,
introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets.

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and liabilities
and is expecting the following impact from the adoption of
the new standard on 1 January 2018:

The Group’s financial assets currently measured at
amortised cost will continue with their classification and
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting for
financial liabilities, as the new requirements only affect the
accounting for financial liabilities that are designated at fair
value through profit or loss and the Group does not have
any such liabilities. The derecognition rules have been
transferred from HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and have not been changed.

The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on expected credit losses
rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case under
HKAS 39. It applies to financial assets classified at amortised
cost, debt instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, contract assets under HKFRS 15
‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’, lease receivables,
loan commitments and certain financial guarantee contracts.
Based on the assessments undertaken to date, the Group
does not expect material changes to the impairment
provision for trade receivables.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These are
expected to change the nature and extent of the Group’s
disclosures about its financial instruments particularly in the
year of the adoption of the new standard.

The impacts on the Group’s financial results and position
upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 are not expected to be
material. The Group intends to adopt the standard for the
financial year beginning on 1 April 2018.

2

2.1
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont'd)
(cont’d)
Notes: (cont’d)

(b)

(i)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS
15 supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition: (1) Identify the contract(s) with a
customer; (2) Identify the performance obligations in the
contract; (3) Determine the transaction price; (4) Allocate
the transaction price to each performance obligation; and (5)
Recognise revenue when each performance obligation is
satisfied.

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach taken
under HKFRSs. The standard also significantly enhances the
qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.

The standard permits either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach for the adoption. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of adopting HKFRS 15 on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, by identifying
the separate performance obligations in the contracts with
customers and allocating the transactions price. The Group
is not yet in a position to state whether they would have a
significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position. The Group intends to adopt the standard
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially
applying this standard recognised at the date of initial
application on 1 April 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BEZE=Z—NF=ZA=+—-HLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont'd)

(b)

(cont’d)
Notes: (cont’d)
(iti)  HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 provides new provisions for the accounting
treatment of leases and will in the future no longer allow
lessees to account for certain leases outside the balance
sheet. Instead, all long-term leases must be recognised in
the balance sheet in the form of assets (for the rights of use)
and lease liabilities (for the payment obligations). Short-term
leases with a lease term of twelve months or less and leases
of low-value assets are exempt from such reporting
obligations. The new standard will therefore result in
recognition of a right-to-use asset and an increase in lease
liabilities in the balance sheet. In the income statement,
rental expenses will be replaced with depreciation and
interest expense.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for
Group’s operating leases. As at 31 March 2018, the Group
has non-cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$165,581,000. Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, the
majority of operating lease commitments will be recognised
in the consolidated balance sheet as lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets. The lease liabilities would subsequently
be measured at amortised cost and the right-of-use assets
will be depreciated on a straight-line basis during the lease
term. The Group intends to adopt the standard for the
financial year beginning on 1 April 2019.

The expected impacts of the adoption of the other new standards,
interpretation and amendments to standards are still being assessed
by the management, and management is not yet in a position to
state whether they would have a significant impact on the Group’s
results of operations and financial position.
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BT HRET
. Go the Extra Mile

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHBEHME®W)
POLICIES (coNT'D)
2.2 Subsidiaries 22 KMIBAF
2.2.1Consolidation 2.2.1 #EHKE

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.

2.2.2Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##&BEHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZE=Z-NF=A=+-BLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.3

24

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors that make strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(@ Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the profit or loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
within “Other gains, net” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEESSHE#SR@®

POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (cont'd) 24 SNERE(E)

Leasehold land and buildings are stated at revalued
amount. Property, plant and equipment, other than
leasehold land and buildings, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Leasehold land and buildings are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at their
revalued amount, being the revaluation value at the date
of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not
differ significantly from that which would be determined
using revaluation values at the reporting date.
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FTESHBEMEZE @

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (cont'd) 25 W% BERRE(E)

104

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of
leasehold land and buildings is credited to the revaluation
reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same assets previously recognised as an
expense, in which case the increase is credited to the
profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously
charged. A decrease in net carrying amount arising on
revaluation of an asset is dealt with as an expense to the
extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the
revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of
that asset.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent
costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost or revalued amounts over their estimated useful lives,
as follows:

Leasehold land
and buildings

Leasehold improvements

Over the shorter of unexpired
term of lease or 50 years
Over the shorter of

lease terms or 5 years

Furniture, fixtures 20%
and equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (cont'd)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amounts and
are recognised in the profit or loss. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
transferred to retained earnings as a movement in reserve.

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the Group. Investment property is initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value, representing
open market value determined at each reporting date by
external valuers. Fair value is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. Changes
in fair values are recorded in the profit or loss within
“Other gains, net”.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2

2.8 Financial assets
2.8.1Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets as fair value
through profit or loss and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(a)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short term. Derivatives are also categorised
as held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if expected to be settled within 12
months; otherwise, they are classified as non-
current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade, retention
and other receivables”, “restricted cash” and
“cash and cash equivalents” in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.8 Financial assets (cont'd)
2.8.2Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the profit or loss.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZE=Z-NF=A=+-BLEE
2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets

2.11

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or a group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The gain or
loss relating to the fair value re-measurement is recognised
immediately in the profit or loss within “Other gains, net”.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.
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POLICIES (coNT'D)
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2.13 Trade, retention and other receivables 2.13 FEUERTR - PEURR B8 X % HL At FE LUK

Trade and retention receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services performed in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade,
retention and other receivables is expected in one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.
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Trade, retention and other receivables are recognised FEUCRR SR - R UL AR B 3R K EL b i U R )
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at FAREHER - HEMNAEERRNZX

amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held at call
with banks.

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

2.16 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade and other payable are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

2.18 Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@ Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date in the countries where the
Company and the Company’s subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (cont’d)

(b)

(©

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are not provided on
temporary differences arising on investment in
subsidiaries because the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2

2.20 Employee benefits

2.21

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods. A
defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as finance cost.
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2.22 Revenue recognition 222 WaSTER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts and returns.
The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below. The Group bases its
estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.

(@ Sales of goods
Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on the
transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered and the title has passed to the
customers.

(b) Contract revenue

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract
will be profitable, contract revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the
stage of completion. Contract costs are recognised as
cost of sales by reference to the stage of completion
of the contract activity at the end of the reporting
period. When it is probable that total contract costs
will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss
is recognised as an expense immediately.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that are
likely to be recoverable.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included in contract revenue to the
extent that may have been agreed with the customer
and are capable of being reliably measured.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.22 Revenue recognition (cont’d)

b)

()

(d)

Contract revenue (cont’d)

The Group uses the “percentage-of-completion”
method to determine the appropriate amount to
recognise in a given period. The stage of completion
is determined by using a method that measures
reliably the work performed. Depending the terms
and information available for individual construction
contracts, the Group estimates the stage of
completion by reference to either surveys of work
performed or the completion of a physical proportion
of the contract work.

On the consolidated statement of financial position,
the Group reports the net contract position for each
contract as either an asset or a liability. A contract
represents an asset where costs incurred plus
recognised profits (less recognised losses) exceed
progress billings; a contract represents liability where
the opposite is the case.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is
recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

Finance income
Finance income is recognised using the effective
interest method.

2.23 Leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

2.24 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including interest rate risk and foreign
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

(@

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises
from borrowings and interest-bearing bank deposits.
Interest-bearing financial assets/liabilities at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Interest-bearing financial assets/liabilities at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2018, if the interest rate had
increased/decreased by 50 basis points with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s profit for the
year and retained earnings would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$119,000 (2017: increase/
decrease by HK$222,000). The 50 basis point
increase/decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual
reporting date.
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3

NE=ZA=t-BLEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(b) Foreign currency risk

(©

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with most
of the sales transactions settled in Hong Kong dollars.
However, foreign currencies are required to settle the
Group’s purchases from overseas suppliers.

To manage their foreign exchange risk arising from
certain future commercial transactions and
recognised liabilities, entities in the Group use
forward contracts, transacted with external financial
institutions. Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency.

At 31 March 2018, if the EURO had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HKD with all other
variables held constant, profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$2,333,000 higher/
lower (2017: HK$1,020,000 higher/lower),
respectively, mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of EURO
denominated cash and bank deposits, trade payables
and borrowings.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
bank balances and trade, retention and other
receivables. Bank balances are deposited with banks
with sound credit rating and the Group considers the
credit risk to be insignificant.

The Group trades with recognised and creditworthy
third parties only. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad
debts is not significant.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D) 3 BiBERER @)
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont'd) 3.1 MEREE )
(c¢) Credit risk (cont’d) (o EREE)

The general credit terms allowed range from 30 to 90 AEEETZEER RN T30

days. As at 31 March 2018, the Group does not hold EFOH - R=ZF-NF=A

any collateral from customers. 14% (2017: 16%) of =t+—H AEBVEZBERFE

the total trade, retention and other receivables was AR - RZE—NF=ZA=+—

due from the Group’s largest customer and 31% B2 YRR R ~ U OR B SR B A

(2017: 27%) was due from the five largest customers JEUL AR 14%( —F — &

of the Group as at 31 March 2018. 16%) KB AKEHEAEP K&31%
T —tF 27%) REAKER
REP o

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented REERMBHRED  HKREER

by the carrying amounts of bank balances, trade, B IRITHEER J?’EE\H&EEM & W

retention and other receivables and derivative BN EMERR N ITESREE

financial assets in the consolidated statement of ZEEHEE AKEYEEMERE

financial position. The Group has no other financial EMTEAEERR

assets carrying significant exposure to credit risk.

(d) Liquidity risk (d) FBELEE
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current AEBTHERRE AR RS
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it BEHF  NHERASEGREN

maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the shorter and longer term.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of HK$62,357,000 (2017:
HK$79,706,000) that are expected to be readily
realised to generate cash inflows for managing
liquidity risk.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D) 3 HBEREE@®
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont'd) 3.1 HHEBEZE(E)
(d) Liquidity risk (cont’d) d) TBEDEE (&)
As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the remaining RZFB-NFR_FT—EF=H
contractual maturities of the Group’s and the =t—H  RAEERARRFRRA
Company’s financial liabilities, based on MRETREZEMBEZHRTA
undiscounted cash flows, are summarised below: RZEBEBENT :
Total
contractual Between
undiscounted ~ Lessthan 3 monthsand ~ Between  Between
cash flows 3 months Tyear 1and2 years 2and5 years Over 5 years
Ban
FERERE  HRZMER ZEAZ-ER  -EWER  WMELER BBLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
As at 31 March 2018 RZB-N§ZB=t-H
Trade and other payables — EREZEEMEMNH 51,300 51,300 - - - -
Borrowings (note) AR (K
— unsecured —ER#H 37,089 25,873 11,216 - - -
— secured —EH# 4,463 353 1,057 1,409 1,644 -
As at 31 March 2017 W=B-t£=8=1-R
Trade and other payables FERRA R R 43,041 43,041 - - - -
Borrowings (note) EEAGIED)
— unsecured — A 29,359 15,223 14,136 - - -
— secured —BER 9,041 1,420 ,196 1,393 3,032 -
Note: According to Hong Kong Interpretation 5, “Presentation of MR : REBEBEAREBESR[MBERRL

Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that contains a Repayment on Demand Clause”,
if a term loan agreement includes an overriding repayment
on demand clause (“callable feature”), which gives the
lender a clear and unambiguous unconditional right to
demand repayment at any time at its sole discretion, a
borrower shall classify the term loan as a current liability in
its balance sheet, as the borrower does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period. Accordingly
the long-term portion of the Group’s bank borrowings of
HK$3,007,000 (2017: HK$4,362,000) were classified as
current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2018.

2% — ERAHRAERERER
KRz BEHRERZ ] BHE
HpHEMBREEE 2 EERE
BIER(EMIED 8 TERANE
M BA e 2 B (R AR A ) P B s 2 HEE Y
BEKER  AIERAEBREEA
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RE A RAILE A E AR T
HHE R B 15 2 HiR IR AT = R 45 BA RS
BEL+Z@A- Bl R=F
—N\EZA=+—08  A£ERT
B EEE S /3,007,000 87T (=
T —tF 1 4,362,00087C) * R
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

3.2

3.3

Capital management

The Group’s objectives on capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated
as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Total
capital is calculated as “equity” as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position plus net debt.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group had a net cash
position. Gearing ratio is not applicable.

Fair value estimation

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets (current
portion), including trade, retention and other receivables,
restricted cash and cash and cash equivalents; and the
Group’s financial liabilities, including trade and other
payables and borrowings, approximate their carrying
amounts due to their short-term maturities.

The Group'’s leasehold land and buildings classified under
property, plant and equipment and investment properties
are carried at fair value. Details of the fair value
measurement of these leasehold land and buildings are
disclosed in note 16 and note 17.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had no financial
instruments carried at fair value.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

4.1 Provision for inventory obsolescence

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group
evaluates the ageing of inventories, their historical sales
pattern, their subsequent utilisation and other factors and
compare the carrying value of inventories to their
estimated net realisable values. The identification of
inventory obsolescence and estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of inventory and impairment provision in the year in
which such estimate has been changed.

4.2 Provision for impairment of trade and retention

receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and retention receivables based on
the credit history of its customers and the current market
condition. Management reassesses the provision for
impairment of trade and retention receivables periodically.
Provisions are applied to receivables where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of trade and retention receivables and
provision for impairment of trade and retention receivables
in the year in which such estimate has been changed.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (coNT'D)

4.3

4.4

Revenue recognition for construction contracts

The Group uses the percentage-of-completion method in
accounting for its construction contracts for sales and
installation of kitchen collections, and other construction
and decoration works. The stage of completion is
determined by reference to independent surveys of work
performed or completion of a physical proportion of the
contract work. When it is probable that total contract costs
will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately. The Group reviews
and revises the estimates of contract revenue, contract
costs, variation orders and contract claims prepared for
each construction contract as the contract progresses.
Budgeted construction income is determined in
accordance with the terms set out in the relevant contracts.
Budgeted construction costs which mainly comprise sub-
contracting charges and costs of materials are prepared by
the management on the basis of quotations from time to
time provided by major contractors, suppliers or vendors
involved and the experience of the management. In order
to keep the budget accurate and up-to-date, the Group’s
management conducts periodic review on the
management budgets by comparing the budgeted amounts
to the actual amounts incurred.

A considerable amount of judgement is required in
estimating the total contract revenue, contract costs,
variation orders and contract claims which may have an
impact in terms of percentage of completion.

Valuation of leasehold land and buildings

The best evidence of fair value is the current prices in an
active market for similar properties. In making its
estimates, the Group considers the information from the
valuations of leasehold land and buildings performed by
external professional valuers by using the open market
value approach. If the Group used different valuation
techniques, the fair value of the leasehold land and
buildings may be different and thus may have an impact
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i

4

FEZIT #BRET

Go the Extra Mile

BERERHER RHE @

4.3

4.4

TREEKHEER
AEBEREREBEERLEFFRE N
REMBERFEETR 2 TRE BEHR
AEIBENE - T THEEBRIEKEDE
TIRZBIUAERLAHNTENER
TILPIMETE - @A RKARR B
HBiEes R - Bz EIRAEER
RFAX - AEBRE RETHBR R
EBAELIEARZERYE - ARMKA -
HEFIHARARRERN - BEIREK
ATREEBERAEGERTE - BE
TRAATEZBEDBERRMEKA -
HERERMPREIEAERH  HER
ZETTEHRAEZBEAREEBZL
BMETE - REFEERTHCBE
FEBEEREEBLBEESCRERR
AT et EIETRE

A AR B - AR - &
BB R R RSB IR 2 Y
B AR ERIEL -

HEL B REFMHE

ARAEZZEFRESBUNENERT
B2 ERER - EFREE - AKHE
EEMIMNEHEEMERMARFTEER
HETHREFTETHEZEM - WA
SEEATRAMETR - MEEL R
BFEZARERG I~ MiEa2@E

WaERAEXTE

121



122

@&

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##&BEHRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZ=Z-NF=A=+-BLEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (coNT'D)

4

5

4.5

Income tax

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred income tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level
of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. Management’s assessment is regularly reviewed
and additional deferred income tax assets are recognised if
it becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred income tax assets to be recovered.

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate determination is
uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such difference will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.

REVENUE

Sale of goods
Contract revenue

4
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2018 2017
—E-N\fF e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FBT
512,660 431,552
72,060 74,429
584,720 505,981
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OTHER INCOME

Rental income
Others

OTHER GAINS, NET

FE 2T BBHET
Go the Extra Mile

Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain B (E518) /s - B

— Forward contracts — EHIA
— Other exchange (loss)/gain, net — HE R (EE) s

Fair value gain on investment properties
(note 17)

Loss on disposal of fixed assets HeEETEEER

8 SEGMENT INFORMATION 8

The executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”) are the Group’s chief operating decision-makers.
Management has determined the operating segments based on
the information reviewed by the Executive Directors for the
purposes of allocating resources and assessing performance.

The Group’s reportable operating segments are as follows:

— Architectural builders” hardware, bathroom collections
and others segment — importing, wholesale and retail of
architectural builders’ hardware and bathroom collections
and others

—  Kitchen collection and furniture segment — designing,
importing, wholesale, retail and installation of kitchen
collections and furniture

The measurement policies the Group used for reporting

segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in its
consolidated financial statements prepared under HKFRSs.
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2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
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2018 2017
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8

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D)

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on the measure of gross profit. Other operating
income and expenses are not allocated to the operating
segments as the information is not regularly reviewed by the
Executive Directors.

Segment assets include all assets but exclude current income
tax recoverable, deferred income tax assets, investment
properties, restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents, property,
plant and equipment related to the office premises of the Group
and other corporate assets which are managed on central basis
and are not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment.

Segment liabilities include all liabilities but exclude current and
deferred income tax liabilities, borrowings (excluding trust
receipt loans) and other corporate liabilities which are managed
on central basis and are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment.

e M HRRME

DEPE R ()

WITESREBEENNFAEFHLLEDHBOE
o HRMTESF Y BT HENEMLE RS
RFZER - BEMRE s R T ED RS

- Wi
EREDEL -

DEHEERBEMAEE - BT EREFKREAH
FriSH - BIEFFSHEE - REWE - KR
R R MREFEY BAKENRTFE
NEBBRNME  BEMRBAREMEESE
E-ZSEERETER  BWFEERERN
EREEDZHEED °

DEHBBEREMARE  BETEEARHRELE

FISHAE - X (TEREERREET) LA

EXaE RFRERETELR BYFE
BENERNZED M ZAEED -

2018
—E-N\F
Architectural
builders’
hardware,
bathroom Kitchen
collections collection
and others and furniture Total
BERE
BARE BE®RE
REAM RER @st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT THER FTER
Reportable segment revenue from AERZHINEF D LS
external customers 434,565 150,155 584,720
Reportable segment cost of sales AEHz A BHERE (263,365) (82,054) (345,419)
Reportable segment gross profit TERZ P HBER 171,200 68,101 239,301
Depreciation of property, WE - WERRETE
plant and equipment (3,511) (1,627) (5,138)
Provision for inventory obsolescence BT S BHE (380) (666) (1,046)
Write-back of provision for B E R A AR
impaired receivables 233 - 233
Reportable segment assets AERZ D HBEE 344,428 95,448 439,876
Additions to non-current segment FENFERBOBEEZAE
assets during the year 1,717 8,642 10,359
Reportable segment liabilities HERZ D DEE 67,926 68,626 136,552
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7 HBRET
ne Extra Mile

8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNT'D) 8 nDEER@E
2017
e
Architectural
builders’
hardware,
bathroom Kitchen
collections collection
and others and furniture Total
BERS -
BARE EFE &
Ko EoAth KA mBEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FAT FET
Reportable segment revenue from AER HNRE D EU
external customers 359,071 146,910 505,981
Reportable segment cost of sales AJTER Y 5 T4 ER AR (225,902) (68,640) (294,542)
Reportable segment gross profit &R 2 7 BRE A 133,169 78,270 211,439
Depreciation of property, W B RRERTE
plant and equipment (4,186) (1,932) (6,118)
Reversal of provision/(provision) BEFERERD,(BH)
for inventory obsolescence 2,312 (787) 1,525
Write-back of provision/(provision) B pi{ERYFEERT(BHE)
for impaired receivables 4,578 (48) 4,530
Reportable segment assets AER DEEE 278,631 81,460 360,091
Additions to non-current segment FENERDIBEEZARE
assets during the year 5,315 1,765 7,080
Reportable segment liabilities mER DEHEE 67,524 41,288 108,812

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##&BEHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZE=Z-NF=A=+-BLEE
8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D) 8 DEPER ()

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments REE T ERZEED A FTEREAEBER
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in EMBHRRZ T2 BBELROT
the consolidated financial statements as follows:

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET

Reportable segment gross profit AEH 25 HEF 239,301 211,439
Group gross profit EEEF 239,301 211,439
Reportable segment assets AEHz2 T HEE 439,876 360,091
Property, plant and equipment M - BE N RE 107,935 98,366
Investment properties REME 36,100 32,700
Deferred income tax assets BEFRERAE 4,491 2,618
Current income tax recoverable AU B A HA AT 45 B 1,973 6,131
Restricted cash ZRRHEE 3,008 2,981
Cash and cash equivalents BERRELEEBEY 62,357 79,706
Other corporate assets HipEEE 271 272
Group assets EEEE 656,011 582,865
Reportable segment liabilities TEHRzSHEE 136,552 108,812
Borrowings B3 9,461 19,023
Current income tax liabilities AEFEHEE 7,392 3,252
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFFSHARE 22,898 19,418
Other corporate liabilities Hpr¥aE 497 496
Group liabilities EEEE 176,800 151,001
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D)

Geographical information

FE 2T BIRET
Go the Extra Mile

8 HDIEERG@EE
RIE 25 E R

Non-current assets
(excluding financial assets

Revenue from external and deferred
customers income tax assets)
FRBEE (TEHE
HIMEF CREERELRESBEE)
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF —Z-N\F B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTExT THET FHER T
Hong Kong (domicile) &&(XB& ) 555,626 469,061 223,905 197,667
PRC F 29,094 36,920 1,930 699
Total st 584,720 505,981 225,835 198,366
The geographical location of customers is determined based on ERFRUERBERXINERAEMLEMT  IF

the location at which the goods were delivered. The

geographical location of the non-current assets is determined MiE

based on the physical location of the assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, no single customer
contributed over 10% of the Group’s revenue (2017: same).

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Employee benefit expenses (note 11)

Auditors’ remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services

Cost of inventories (note 19)

Depreciation (note 16)

Operating lease charges in respect of
land and buildings

Direct operating expenses arising from
investment properties that generated
rental income

Provision/(reversal of provision) for
inventory obsolescence (note 19)

Write-back of provision for impaired
receivables (note 20)

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i

R °

9 MXHHE

2018
—B-N\fF
HK$/000
FHR
8 TEFZH (1) 79,203
BT Gl e
— RBRG 2,368
— BB 120
A (HH3E19) 317,693
8 (M 16) 10,305
HiREE 2 ESRETH
55,310
EEMSWAZ RENLEE
R
109
BESTF SRS (EERE)
(B3E19) 1,046
LA B B e 3 A A B (35 20)
(233)

MBEEZWRUERRIEZEEZERUE

HE_Z-N\F=-A=1+T—RHILtFET WE:H
—EPEAEERSEEB10%( - T+ F:

2017
—E—+tF
HK$’000
FHET
71,645
2,797
120
274,721
10,665

47,864

106
(1,525)

(4,530)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #4R& Bt RME
For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZ=Z-NF=A=+-BLEE
10 FINANCE COSTS, NET 10 BAEEBH - #%
2018 2017
—®-N\E T tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fax FAT
Finance costs B AR
Bank borrowings RITER 897 1,005
Finance income B A
Interest income F U A 99) (619)
Finance costs, net MR FEE 798 386
11T EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 11 BEIRAZE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FA&T
Salaries and allowances, including ek BEES
directors’” emoluments (note 12) B (BF5E12) 73,724 68,950
Pension costs — defined contribution plans SR A4t Fiat &l 2,979 2,695
Other long-term employee benefits Hih R HIE BB 2,500 -
79,203 71,645
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12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND

THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(@ Directors’ remuneration

The aggregate amount of emoluments paid or payable to
the directors of the Company are as follows:

Executive directors
TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman)
TSE Sun Wai, Albert
TSE Sun Po, Tony
(Managing Director)
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin
LAU Shiu Sun

Independent non-executive
directors

LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P.

WONG Wah, Dominic

WAN Sze Chung

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i

BITES
AEE(ZE)
HHE

HAE (EEREE)

Ep T
21485

BIFHTES
RN A TH+

N
BB

FEZIT #BRET

Go the Extra Mile

12 BEEZERANEEREAZ TS H
A
(@ EEZHFM
BN SREMAAREEZESAENT -
2018
—E-N\E

Employer’s

contribution

Salaries to retirement

Directors’ and benefit
fees bonus scheme Total

REENK
EEHme FEeREA HEEE |t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FERx FERx FERx
100 3,300 18 3,418
100 4,922 - 5,022
100 4,160 18 4,278
100 3,092 18 3,210
100 1,754 18 1,872
108 - - 108
108 - - 108
108 - - 108
824 17,228 72 18,124
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #&BEHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZE=Z-NF=A=+-BLEE

12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND 12 EE2EAEEZEAALZES &M
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (coNT'D) AL @)
(@) Directors’ remuneration (cont’'d) (@) EBZHM(E)
2017
—E—+tF
Employer’s

contribution
Salaries  to retirement

Directors’ and benefit
fees bonus scheme Total
RERIK
EXikn o RIEAD R 3 A&t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TR TR TR
Executive directors BTES
TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman) ##0% (£7%) 100 3,860 18 3,978
TSE Sun Wai, Albert iz 100 5,737 - 5,837
TSE Sun Po, Tony A E (EER5T)

(Managing Director) 100 5,050 18 5,168
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin T 100 3,674 18 3,792
LAU Shiu Sun B4R % 100 1,971 18 2,089
Independent non-executive BYFHITES
directors
LEUNG Kwong Kin, /.P. RICEE 4wt 108 - - 108
WONG Wah, Dominic =i 108 - - 108
WAN Sze Chung B 108 - - 108

824 20,292 72 21,188

No directors have waived or agreed to waive their BE_Z-\F=ZA=+—HIFE"
emoluments in respect of the year ended 31 March 2018 VEEERARIFABRARRSZHE (=
(2017: Nil). T—tFE)-

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits and termination benefits b)) EEZBRKEFNRBERER
None of the directors received or will receive any FA - BESEC RIS KEUERR
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the year REFSBEREN (—F—tF - &) -
(2017: Nil).

(c) Consideration provided to third parties for making (0 HERHESBRBmMAETFE=FRE
available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group does BE_T-/\F=RA=+—-HIEFE"
not pay consideration to any third parties for making AEBY BB EME =T REEERYE
available directors’ services (2017: Nil). MAEXNRE(ZT—1F &) -
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12 BEEZERANEEREAZ TS H
AT @)

12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (cONT'D)

(d)

(e)

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
controlled entities with such directors

As at 31 March 2018, there are no loans, quasi-loans or
other dealings in favour of the directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and controlled entities with such directors
(2017: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

Saved as disclosed in note 32, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

(d)

(e)

MES ZZRSESLFNEAEER
ZEENREIRRHMAAMNER  EE&
RREMZ 5
RZE-NFZA=+—H UERE
T RRFESENNEABRLZE
EMRETIRREHEMNER  EERHK
HiRFH(ZF—LF : &)

ESEXRS  RYRERNEAES

BRIOMIEE32 WEESIN - NRFEAKEFLE
B ARAAEFREREAREER
HEmMARREEERKREERLTHE
BEAERZEEZRS  ZHMAR -

(f) Key management personnel H FEREEAS
The Group regards the executive directors as the key AEERRUTEEDIAREEAR
management personnel. Details of the remuneration paid SN TFRENMEFBEERRE @] °
to them are set out in (a).

(g Five highest paid individuals (@ ITEESHFMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include four (2017: four)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments paid or payable to the
five highest paid individuals during the year are as follows:

FRAREBEZRAERSHMALEED
(ZT—tF:H)EE FEHES
EAER EXFIRZOMA - FREX
NREXN T REERSHHMALZHM
LN

2018 2017

—B-N\E T tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FBT FHET

Salaries and allowances e KR 18,434 22,456
Pension costs — defined contribution AERR G

plans 72 72

18,506 22,528

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##&BEHRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZ=Z-NF=A=+-BLEE

12

13

BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND 12
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (cONT'D)

(g Five highest paid individuals (cont'd)
The emoluments fell within the following bands:

BEEsmAMEEREAZ RS EH M
AT @)

(® ITEREFMALE
ZARANLTZMENFIATRE :

Number of individuals

AE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F

Emolument bands (in HK$) HENAE R (B T)
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 87T 3,000,000 87T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T % 3,500,000 77T 2 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7 7T % 4,000,000 77T - 3
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 & L= 4,500,000 7 7T 1 -
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 % 7L £ 5,000,000 7 7T - -
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 /7T ZE 5,500,000 78 7T 1 1
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 & 7T Z 6,000,000 8 7T - 1

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13 FSBIAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in which the subsidiaries operate.

Current tax BRERBE 18

Hong Kong profits tax FAEMEH

Overseas income tax BINTIS B

Under/(over) provision in prior years FERBEBIE(BEEE)
Total current tax BIERTR B 4258

Deferred taxation (note 25) IEERIE (FEE25)
Income tax expense Frig BB

EBNEETIAF NG ERT S AR X
16.5%(ZF —+ 4 : 16.5%) T2 HHE - BH
FIEFHIBIEFE NG ER TR ALK B Q&
EIERR ZBITREHE -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHRT FHT
11,263 8,126
12 550
551 (401)
11,826 8,275
(2,438) (179)

9,388 8,096
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FE 2T BBHET
Go the Extra Mile

FRiSfif > (@)

AEBEABRHEAGN 2 HIBRRERBA
SESEMENBER ZREME 2 BRI E

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT'D) 13

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic tax rates

in the countries in which the Group operates as follows: ZEBMN
Group
REH
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit before income tax B 15 B A4 A 53,582 50,403
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates ZARBEREZENERD
applicable to profits in the respective B R R E R IE
countries 8,763 8,563
Effect of tax reduction in current year REEBBERIOTE (327) -
Under/(over) provision in prior years EFBHETR(BEERE) 551 (401)
Income not subject to tax BERBUA (560) (1,070)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes A 0FiFIL 734 662
Utilisation of previously unrecognised B ABERERTIAER
tax losses (869) -
Unrecognised tax losses AEERBIBEE 1,096 342
Tax expense for the year REEBEMX 9,388 8,096

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 16.4% (2017:

BRAMEIHOHRE B164% (2T —+F:

17.0%). 17.0%) °
14 DIVIDENDS 14 I&E
(@ Dividends declared and paid during the year (@ REAFEEMRIKZEZRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T FHT
Final dividend in respect of 2017 R RABRETR2.581
of HK2.5 cents (2017: in respect of (ZZ—+F  —T—AF2RERE
2016 of HK2 cents) per share FI2B) 15,015 12,012
Special dividend in respect of 2016 R REZRERIBE B B
of HK5 cents per share - 30,030
Interim dividend in respect of 2018 2 \EFEhHRE B
of HK1 cent (2017: in respect of —E—+F T FEFREKE
2017 of HK1.5 cents) per share GRR1.534) 6,006 9,009
21,021 51,051

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##&BEHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BEZE=Z—NF=ZA=+—-HLFE

14 DIVIDENDS (CONT'D) 14 KB @
(b) Dividends for the year b)) FERE
2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTRET THET
Interim dividend of HK1 cent FHIREER 1B ZE—+F
(2017: HK1.5 cents) per share FI1.58100) 6,006 9,009
Proposed final dividend of BRPREER25BI(ZT—+LF :
HK2.5 cents (2017: HK2.5 cents) G 2.5780) (D)
per share (note) 15,015 15,015
21,021 24,024
Note: MGE
Final dividends have been proposed by the directors after the reporting AEAR B AREENRE B RREFIRN « ZFR
date. The proposed dividends, subject to the shareholders’ approval at Be 2 (B R R A B I RB S K& EHbE) I &
the forthcoming annual general meeting, are not reflected as dividend RBRANR—ZE-NF=ZA=+—RZEMNEKS -
payable as at 31 March 2018.
15 EARNINGS PER SHARE 15 FREN
(@ Basic @ E=Xx
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit FRERGMIREBEARRBMBERE
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the BEHBRAFEANEETEBREBEE -
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET TET
Profit attributable to equity RRBIFBE RN
owners of the Company 44,194 42,307
Number of ordinary shares in issue (thousands) £ 277 AR AZ & (FA%) 600,600 600,600
(b) Diluted (b) #F
Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March HRUEEFTECEETERE  REE
2018 is the same as the basic earnings per share as there ZE-\E=ZA=+—HIEFEZER
were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares issued (2017: BERNAGRERRN —B(ZE—+
same). F-%)-
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FEZ1T BHRET
Go the Extra Mile

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 W% - BENERE
Leasehold land Furniture,
and buildings Leasehold fixtures and Motor
(note)  improvements equipment vehicles Total
HELH HE B £8
REF () NELE k#E AE B3t
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FAL TAL THET TART

Net book value FHFE
At 1 April 2016 RZE— R FNA—H 136,300 10,415 1,356 513 148,584
Additions RE - 7,079 112 - 7,191
Disposal HeE - (296) - - (296)
Depreciation (note 9) HE (fE9) (4,266) (5,813) (444) (142) (10,665)
Revaluation Bff 20,966 - - - 20,966
Exchange difference EfzE - (89) (25) - (114)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=A=1+—H 153,000 11,296 999 371 165,666
Additions RE - 10,359 38 - 10,397
Disposal HE - (1,652) - - (1,652)
Depreciation (note 9) E (fi9) (4,897) (4,896) (344) (168) (10,305)
Revaluation &fh 25,497 - - - 25,497
Exchange difference ERzE - 106 17 9 132
At31 March 2018 R-E-\F=A=1-H 173,600 15,213 710 212 189,735
At 31 March 2017 R_E—+F=A=1—H
Valuation Bff 153,000 - - - 153,000
Cost AR - 79,266 19,526 967 99,759
Accumulated depreciation SHE - (67,970) (18,527) (596) (87,093)
Net book amount EEFE 153,000 11,296 999 371 165,666
At31 March 2018 RoB-NEZA=+-R
Valuation T 173,600 - - - 173,600
Cost B - 77,808 19,665 982 98,455
Accumulated depreciation B E - (62,595) (18,955) (770) (82,320)
Net book amount FEFE 173,600 15,213 710 212 189,735

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #&BEHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BEZE=Z—NF=ZA=+—-HLFE

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (coNT'D) 16 % - WFE M&iE @
Note: BeE
If leasehold land and buildings were stated on the historical cost basis, the MEE T REFIRELRNAEERY]  GHASEN
amounts would be as follows: T
2018 2017
—z-_nE —E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHT
Cost FRAR 34,804 34,804
Accumulated depreciation BEHIFE (6,389) (5,693)
Net book amount BREFE 28,415 29,111
Bank borrowings are secured by the leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong RITRERALIREE4107,500,0008 T (—F — £ 4 :
with a total carrying amount of HK$107,500,000 (2017: HK$97,700,000) (note 97,700,000 7T ) 2 A HE - b RIEFIEE A (M5
24). 24) ¢
The following table analyses the leasehold land and buildings carried at fair TRUBEESMRAABIRZBE L RIET -

value, by valuation method.

Fair value measurements using

RATHREEZAAENE
Quoted prices Significant
in active Significant unobservable
markets for  other observable inputs
identical assets inputs (Level 3)
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Note)
BER HREEZER BEAEMATERERE BEXTTHEHA
THREE—F) BARE(EZE) BEEZE) (M)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TR TR
As at 31 March 2018 R-T—NEFE=A=+—8
Recurring fair value measurements QEENRESE
— Leasehold land and buildings — et RES - - 173,600
As at 31 March 2017 R-ZE—+®#=A=+—A1
Recurring fair value measurements CEENRESE
— Leasehold land and buildings — et RES - - 153,000
Note: For fair value measurement under Level 3, inputs for the asset or liability Mz RE=ZBETZAAENEMNS  BEXEEZ
are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs). WARBLIFAATEET SR (DT ABEER
ANBIE) RBERE -
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value FEBZBRAREREH AN EER 2 BHEBE 2 E0H
hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that AEREHER  HREBAANEERZBEAREL -
caused the transfer. There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during FR - FE F_EREZEZHETEER -
the year.
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3)

Opening balance FHE
Depreciation e

Surplus on revaluation recognised REMEZEREERZ
in other comprehensive income Efh AR
Closing balance FRRIER

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were valued at 31
March 2018 by an independent professionally qualified valuer,
Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited, who holds a recognised
relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in
the locations and segments of the leasehold land and buildings
valued.

The Group’s finance department includes a team that reviews
the valuations performed by the independent valuer for
financial reporting purposes. This team reports directly to the
board of directors. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the review team and the valuer
annually.

Level 3 fair values of leasehold land and buildings have been
derived using the direct comparison approach, which basically
uses the comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market to derive the fair value of the properties. Sale
prices of comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted
for differences in key attributes such as time of transactions,
property size and location. The most significant input into this
valuation approach is the market unit rate.

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i

16 Y% - WEKEE @)

MABEXRFIBERABE (F=8) 22 RE

e

Leasehold land and buildings

HELHRES
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FABT
153,000 136,300
(4,897) (4,266)
25,497 20,966
173,600 153,000

FEMzZEERE
AEEZHELRBFHBELEXAERM
EEERAERGOMTAERARANR T N\F=
A=+—RlE  wHEMSAHEERIER
B Aol BN HE LR THREmE K
D EPETTISE -

AEEMEHBE MU BERE B HEHE
MIEERPTETTHEZ BN - ZERERAE
EgER - AEERESFREEMNHBEER
ERER -

MELTHREFZE="BAAENERERL
BOASH - BERLEE—RANABEETS LA
ERZAEALBHER G EBMERRE - #
@A AL B E 2 EBO AR HER - ¥
FEHERMHEIERH 2 ZREHAE - 1t
MEEZRERBABBATSEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #&BEHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZE=Z-NF=A=+-BLEE

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D) 16 3% - BB Mk @)
Information about fair value measurements using significant FRAAEATTERBARE (F=E) 22
unobservable inputs (Level 3) REFEZER
Relationship of unobservable inputs
Unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs of fair value
TAEERARE TABERABBEE DAEMSRAATEERABE ZBE
Market unit rate Office: HK$21,800 to HK$21,900 The higher the market unit rate,
g Mm% (2017: HK$19,800 to HK$19,900) the higher the fair value
per square feet of saleable area
WA= EAERESFIR21,800/487T MSEEXES  ARELES

221,900 7L (ZF—+4F : 19,800/87T
Z19,9007%87T)

Shop: HK$86,000 (2017: HK$72,000)
per square feet of saleable area

54 - BRAERE TR 86,000/87T
(ZF—+% : 72,0008 7T)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the FR[ETEREZES -
year.
17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17 BEWM=
2018 2017
—E-N\F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
At 1 April REA—H 32,700 28,400
Fair value gain recognised in EEREERARL B
the profit or loss 3,400 4,300
At 31 March R=A=+—H 36,100 32,700
The fair value gain on investment properties is included in BREMENRABRETIHAGE2AKER
“Other gains, net” in the consolidated statement of WE [ E e - FRR (7)) -

comprehensive income (note 7).
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~E 21T BBHRET
Gg f_;_the Extra Mile

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT'D) 17 BREWE@)

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs:

EREREATABRGABEBN AR EFE
AR

Fair value measurements using
RATH®EZARENE

Quoted prices

in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
B HEEEZ EXHAMT EXFAE
ERTERE - EBRGARE E@ABE
(5—8@) (5=8) (5=18)
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET THET FTHRT
As at 31 March 2018 R-ZE—-N\F=A=+—H
Recurring fair value measurements &EMHEDAEHE
— Investment properties —REME - - 36,100
As at 31 March 2017 RZB—+HF=A=+—H
Recurring fair value measurements &EMQREHE
— Investment properties —REME - - 32,700

As at 31 March 2018, valuations were undertaken by an
independent professionally qualified valuer, Memfus Wong
Surveyors Limited. The valuation processes are the same as the
revaluation of leasehold land and buildings held for own use
(note 16).

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

RZZB-N\F=A=+—R " HEIEIHE
VEESERGEMITERERFMITERA
AT AEBEERSIFEANEE LR
By EEER(KE16) -

ERAAEATTERRARE (F=E) 22
REFEZER

Relationship of unobservable

Unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs inputs of fair value
TABERARE TABERABBEE DAEMSRFAEER AR ZFHE
Market unit rate HK$21,900 (2017:HK$19,900) per The higher the market unit rate,
misEEER square feet of saleable area the higher the fair value

EAEBESFHFR21,900/%87T
(ZZ—+4F :19,900/87T)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques used during
the year.

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i

mZEEXRES  ARNELS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BEZE=Z—NF=ZA=+—-HLFE
INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

18

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 March

2018:

Name of subsidiary

MEBARERE

Asia Bon Company
Limited

ER(EMEEEE
BRAR

Asia Richly Limited
THNEEBRAR

Bonco Ironmongery
Limited
RELSEMAERAA

D.LY. Limited

E. Bon Building
Materials Company
Limited

TRFBITREM R
BRAF

H2O (Pro) Limited

KZIEBRAF

Kitchen (Pro) Limited
BZzRERAR

Massford (Hong Kong)
Limited
XE(BB)BERAR

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

FEf, RS i B

Hong Kong
0

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
0

Hong Kong
0

Hong Kong
5

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
0

Particulars of
issued share capital

ERITRAHE

100 ordinary shares

100 & R

1 ordinary share
1R AR

10,000 ordinary shares
10,000 A% & i@ AR

2 ordinary shares

2 e s

6,000 ordinary shares
6,000 A E A

2 ordinary shares

2 R sER

1,000 ordinary shares
1,000 A% 38 A%

10,000 ordinary shares
10,000 & 38 %

Legal structure

EEER

Company with limited
liabilities

BREERA

Company with limited
liabilities

EREERT

Company with limited
liabilities

EREMERT

Company with limited
liabilities

BEREMERA

Company with limited
liabilities

EREMFERT

Company with limited
liabilities

EREERT

Company with limited
liabilities

EREMERT

Company with limited
liabilities

BRAEAR

mEMBRRME

18 MBAR#ER

UWTABR-_ZE—\F=A=+—HZ2TEWE
UNSIE)-

0

Principal activities and place of

Equity interest held  operation
PRSI A S TEREBRREEBR
2018 2017
—B-N\F ZZT—+%F
100% 100% Property holding in Hong Kong
REBIEDESE
100% 100% Property holding in Hong Kong
NEEENERE
100% 100% Importing and sale of architectural
builders” hardware in Hong Kong
REBEORFEERERS
100% 100% Handling of human resources
planning and development
activities of the Group
BEAEBANERRENERFE
100% 100% Importing and sale of architectural
builders” hardware and bathroom
collections in Hong Kong
REBEORBEREAER
AR
100% 100% Importing and sale of bathroom
collections in Hong Kong
NEBEOSHERARE
100% 100% Importing, sale and installation of
kitchen collections in Hong Kong
REBED  HERLEERERE
100% 100% Supply of architectural builders’

hardware and bathroom collections
for property development in

Hong Kong
REBHEREDLS REARET
ES RS

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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18 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D) 18 FIEEA R (@)

Place of
incorporation/

Particulars of

Principal activities and place of

Name of subsidiary establishment issued share capital Legal structure Equity interest held  operation
M DR A B B2t R BRITRAHES EEEE FrisR A TEXEBREELR
2018 2017
ZB-NF —T—+F
Massford (Shanghai) PRC US$250,000 Wholly foreign owned 100% 100% Supplying architectural builders’
Limited* A 250,000 37T enterprise hardware and bathroom collections
x=(L®)nge 2HNERE for property development in
BRRA] Shanghai
REBHEZEREREAREBT
MEERIAR
Right Century Limited ~ Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares ~ Company with limited 100% 100% Retail sales of bathroom accessories
B ERAR 5 1,000 % 3 38 A liabilities and decoration materials through
BREMERA retail shops in Hong Kong
FERTEEREBTEHEMHARE
ES T
Shanghai Tech Pro PRC US$300,000 Wholly foreign owned 100% 100% Importing and sale of architectural
International Trading 300,000 7T enterprise builders” hardware and bathroom
Company Limited* 2HNERE collections in the PRC
EEGREEES RABEEOREEZERS R
BRRF] BARE
Shanghai Techpro PRC RMB5,000,000 Wholly foreign owned 100% 100% Undertaking interior decoration and
Interior Decoration s AR 5,000,000 7T enterprise project management for property
Company Limited* 2HNERE development in the PRC
LEEBRERKS R B ENRG RIE R R R
BIRAR FHEERIAR
Sunny Building and Hong Kong 6,000 ordinary shares ~ Company with limited 100% 100% Retail sales of architectural builders’
Decoration Materials &8 6,000 A% L @A% liabilities hardware and bathroom collections
Company Limited BREERA through retail shops in Hong Kong
AR RS TA BERTEENREETEHERER S
BRAF RER R
Techpro Trading Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares ~ Company with limited 100% 100% Importing and sale of architectural
Limited BB 1,000 % 3@ A% liabilities builders’ hardware
BREMEHERDF BREFELF HEORHERERS
VIA (Shanghai) Limited* PRC US$250,000 Wholly foreign owned 100% 100% Importing and sale of bathroom,
Bm(LB)RABE & 250,000 27T enterprise furniture and kitchen collections
BRAR INERE in Shanghai
RN EEORBEERS  RIK
&5 7%
* The English names of certain subsidiaries referred herein represent * AR ERETHBAGIEESCELE  HZE

management’s best effort in translating the Chinese names of these

RN ERHEEEERET X ERENTZF -

subsidiaries as no English names have been registered.

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BEZE=Z—NF=ZA=+—-HLFE

19 INVENTORIES 19 78
2018 2017
—E-N\F —B—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Finished goods AR R 168,497 146,058
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in ERRRAX LA HERAN] 2 FERAR
“cost of sales” amounted to HK$317,693,000 (2017: 317,693,000/% 7L ( =& — £ 4 : 274,721,000
HK$274,721,000). T o
As at 31 March 2018, finished goods with cost of RZF-NF=ZA=+—0  BERKLBIK
HK$35,813,000 (2017: HK$34,163,000) were considered as X A35,813,00087L(=ZZF—+4F : 34,163,000
obsolete. ABTT) e
The movement in the provision for inventory obsolescence is as BRFEREEHNT
follows:
2018 2017
—B-N\%E Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TET
Balance at beginning of the year FHEER 34,163 36,187
Provision for/(reversal of provision) BEFERE(BERERE)
inventory obsolescence 1,046 (1,525)
Exchange difference EHER 604 (499)
Balance at end of the year FRAERR 35,813 34,163

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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20 TRADE, RETENTION AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 FEURBERER - EURIR B 3R M E b fE Uk
Eo

TA
Details of the trade, retention and other receivables as at 31 RZZF-—NF=ZA=1+—H ' BRER Bk
March 2018 are listed below: REF N H M EURE RN T
2018 2017
—B-\F T iH
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Trade receivables JE U BR 23X 137,081 115,226
Less: provision for impairment of trade R YR B SR E B R
receivables (636) (855)
136,445 114,371
Retention receivables FEMR B 3K 5,368 6,308
Less: provision for impairment of retention g : JEUIR B 7Rl B R
receivables (287) (260)
141,526 120,419
Amounts due from customers for contract el EF 2 & A TI2RER (H35E29)
work (note 29) 15,277 2,596
Other receivables, deposits and HAEUGK ~ & RIEN R
prepayments 33,047 23,990
189,850 147,005
Less: non-current portion A SERIEEE Y
Retention receivables FEWR B X (4,085) (5,672)
Deposits and prepayments Be RIERAR (13,985) (4,746)
Current portion BIEAED 171,780 136,587
All non-current receivables are due within five years from the Fr B JEBNERED ) 2 FEMGR S A B4R 5 A 85T 1
end of the respective reporting dates. FREE -

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BEZE=Z—NF=ZA=+—-HLFE

144

(CONT'D)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables at the reporting date by

T
TA ()

20 TRADE, RETENTION AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20 FEUERFR - FEUIR B R H e U

FEUSRF NI E B 2Rk ABRERFE) O

invoice date is as follows: NN
2018 2017
—B—N\E T %
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
1-90 days 1Z290K 107,702 85,789
91-365 days 91 £365K 16,778 21,886
Over 365 days #3365 K 12,601 7,551
137,081 115,226

The majority of the Group’s sales are with credit terms of 30 to
90 days, while some customers are granted an extended credit
period of up to 120 days.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are not impaired is

as follows:

Not yet past due fr) K 260 2

1-90 days past due #HR1 290K
91-365 days past due #HI91 365K
Over 365 days past due BHEE365 K

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
wide range of customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are expected to be fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

AEBZHEEERARLHR30E0H -
BOEPHNEEHNAEERESRZ 120 -

REBERBREZ BYFRHZ BREDITIAT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
65,264 57,348
45,351 35,442
14,464 14,885
11,366 6,696
136,445 114,371

EEMERELRERE 2 BRI REE TR
AEBBERFERCHEZEP - REBEL

B AN MEEERRBARZF

RERRELBERE - AEBEY B X FEHRE
BEAERR -

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



20 TRADE, RETENTION AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20
(CONT'D)
The movement in the provision for impairment of trade and
retention receivables is as follows:
Balance at beginning of the year FREE
Write-back of provision for impaired B0 B 8 W SR B A )
receivables
Exchange difference EHER
Balance at end of the year R
At each reporting date, the Group reviews receivables for
evidence of impairment on both an individual and collective
basis. As at 31 March 2018, the Group determined trade and
retention receivables of HK$923,000 (2017: HK$1,115,000) as
individually impaired. The impaired trade and retention
receivables are due from customers that were in default or
delinquency of payments.
As at 31 March 2018, the carrying values of trade and other
receivables approximate their fair values (2017: same).

21 RESTRICTED CASH 21

Restricted cash ERHIBE S
Restricted bank deposits of HK$3,008,000 (2017:
HK$2,981,000) represented fixed term deposits placed with
commercial banks and were pledged against performance
bonds granted to the Group (note 31).

The effective interest rate on restricted bank deposits was 0.5%
(2017: 0.5%) per annum as at 31 March 2018.

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i

B2 HRET

&G‘{}he Extra Mile

U ER TR~ FE MR B AR e Eo At R iR

T
TA ()

FEYR A R IRE SR E R B R BN T

2018 2017
—E-N\&F =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET
1,115 5,688
(233) (4,530)

41 43)

923 1,115

RERER - ANEBIZE R R BB EER FE
WHEBREEE R NF=ZA=+—
A AEERERERRERRERRERES
923,000 (ZF—+4 : 1,115,000/87T) &
ZEERRE o BB FEY R EY IR EE R
THIEMR B2 B RIB TR B P HIFRIE ©

RZFB-N\F=ZA=1+—0  BEERREAM
JEW R 7 BREEE A R A ERE (CF—+F :
R °

ZPRHIRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
3,008 2,981

ZBR H1$R 1717 5% 3,008,00078 7L ( —F —+H4F ¢
2,981,000 7T ) IEF WA B ERT 2 E BT
Fo BEIFEARNE BERELIRE 2 EIF M
(MfzE31) »

RZZE—NF=ZA=1+—H  ZRHWITERX
CEBFFERE05%(ZF—EF 1 0.5%) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZ=Z-NF=A=+-BLEE

22

23

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank and on hand RITEREFERE
As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$10,017,000 (2017: HK$15,089,000) are
deposited with banks in the PRC, where the remittance of funds
is subject to foreign exchange control.

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was
0.09% (2017: 0.05%) per annum as at 31 March 2018.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

FEFRRX
FERT B A M A A FE 3R

Trade payables

Accrued charges and other payables

Amounts due to customers for contract
work (note 29)

The ageing analysis of the trade payables at the reporting date
by invoice date is as follows:

0-90 days 0ZE 90K
91-365 days 91 365K
Over 365 days HiB365 K

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying values of trade and other
payables approximate their fair values (2017: same).

EREP 2 AW TIRERN

22 B LREFEY

2018
—E-NF
HK$'000
TR

62,357

2017
—E—+F
HK$’000
FAT

79,706

RZZE-—NFZA=+—H8 AEEZR& K
SRIT 4 410,017,000 L ( —F — - F ¢
15,089,000 7)) EF AR 2 iR17 - B

SINGEE 15 T

R-Z—NEZA=Z+—8 BHRTERZ
BERENEA0.09% (2 —+F : 0.05%) °

23 EAERFEEAREA R

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —TE—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
36,063 24,293
12,949 7,006
(FfzE29)
2,288 11,742
51,300 43,041

FERBRN IR E A 2 IR (AR A E) 27

T

2018 2017

—E-N\fF —E—ti

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHBT

36,003 23,242

53 124

7 927

36,063 24,293

RIZB-N\F=A=+—R " BRI IEM
Nz RRERE QA ERE (T —1F

R
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24 BORROWINGS

Current
Secured
— Bank loans

Unsecured
— Trust receipt loans
— Bank loans

Trust receipt loans are mainly denominated in HK$ or Euro. All

bank loans are denominated in HKS.

At 31 March 2018, the Group’s borrowings were repayable as

follows:

Within one year
In the second year
In the third to fifth year

Bank borrowings of HK$4,367,000 (2017: HK$8,897,000) are
secured by leasehold land and buildings of the Group of

B4
B
— RITEK

AT
— B E
T

HK$107,500,000 (2017: HK$97,700,000) (note 16).

The fair value of borrowings, which carry interest at floating

rates, equals their carrying amounts.

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i

FE 2T BBHET
Go the Extra Mile

f& K

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
4,367 8,897
31,921 19,092
5,094 10,126
41,382 38,115

SRRBBERZEEER RETHEE - B
RITERZHEEEE /BT -

RZZ-N\F=A=1+—R rEEEAEEEZ
fEFRAT

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
38,375 33,753
1,377 1,361
1,630 3,001
41,382 38,115

iR 17 18 34,367,000 jo( = T — £ F:
8,897,000 7 7T ) 52 LA A8 5 B & £1107,500,000
BT (ZZE—+FF 1 97,700,000/8 L) 2FHE+
R EF R (FisE16) o

MAEFBNERZ ER AN EZEREREE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZE=Z-NF=A=+-BLEE
24 BORROWINGS (cONT'D)

25

The Group had the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

Floating rate:
— Expiring within one year

The effective interest rate is 2.3% (2017: 2.1%) for the year

ended 31 March 2018.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax liabilities

ULES

— —FREH

EFSIREE

EFFEHARE

The movements in gross deferred income tax assets and
liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as

follows:

Deferred income tax assets

At 1 April ROA—A

Credited/(charged) to & A /(4n8) B3
profit or loss

Exchange difference  EXzZ

At 31 March R=A=+—H

24 fBFEum

AEBENTABAZRERSR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET
215,324 221,422

BHE-_ZE—-N\E=ZA=+—HIEEZTEHN
KAEI3%(ZF—EF 1 2.1%) °

25 RIEFTIFH

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
4,491 2,618
(22,898) (19,418)
(18,407) (16,800)

REE BRI FLEME R MK SHAERRAT -
AERBZBEERSHREENABRBRED I

T
EEFEHEE
Decelerated tax
Tax losses depreciation Provision Total
HEEE HEBARE B CE
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-N\f —T—+F ZB-\E -T—+5 ZB-N\F —Z+F ZB-\E —T—+%
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FER FET TER TRT TER TAT FER TR
382 159 3,484 2,825 1,717 2,399 5,583 5,383
1,155 223 1,122 659 14 (546) 2,291 336
- - - - 162 (136) 162 (136)
1,537 382 4,606 3484 1,893 1717 8036 558

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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DEFERRED TAXATION (CONT'D) 25 RIEPTET (@)
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEFEHEE
Revaluation of properties Accelerated tax depreciation Total
NEER MEBIRFE CE
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\F  —TF ZB-N\F "TF CZB-Nf T F
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER FET FEn FET
At 1 April REA—A 22,000 18,541 383 226 22,383 18,767
Charged to other MEEtEERE
comprehensive income 4,207 3,459 - - 4,207 3,459
(Credited)/charged to (GtA)/MBeEsE
profit or loss - - (147) 157 (147) 157
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 26,207 22,000 236 383 26,443 22,383

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has not recognised deferred
income tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
HK$10,569,000 (2017: HK$9,385,000) as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entities.
These tax losses utilisation will expire as follows:

In the first to fifth year inclusive

Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$930,000 as at 31 March
2018 (2017: HK$937,000) have not been recognised for the
withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of subsidiaries. Unremitted earnings
totalled HK$18,591,000 at 31 March 2018 (2017:
HK$18,734,000), and the Group does not intend to remit these
unremitted earnings from the relevant subsidiaries to the
Company in the foreseeable future.

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i

E—FEFRFAN(REEREMF)

RZE-—NF=ZA=+—8 ~EERER
AR HIBEEIE10,569,0008 T (=ZT—+
19,385,000 7)) ZELEFBREE L5
HREEERE R A REE R EREEmS -
RN K P] RE ERAS JE 7R s I A DA S5 B TR S
B ZSEHEBBZIMSHANT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
10,569 9,385

RZZE—N\F=ZA=1+—8 " TERNBELQF
IR BB 2 ) ) 2 TE OB e L Ath 56 TE A SRR SE P
SH A E 930,000/ L (ZF—+F : 937,000
BL) RZZE—NF=ZA=+—8" ' XEZR
M A& # A18,591,0008 T( = T — + 4
18,734,000 7T ) « NEE W HITE RN T B %
JREEAAA BB B A B 2 REZF]
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26

27

SHARE CAPITAL 26 AR
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Number of Number of
shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
RHEE TERT Bin 28 TET
Authorised: JETE
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each  BREE0.1BL 2 Lk
At 1 April and 31 March WIE—HE=A=1—H  1,000,000,000 100,000 1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: RESPES SR
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each ~ EREE0.1 BT @K
At 1 April REA—H 600,600,000 60,060 300,300,000 30,030
Issue of bonus shares AR EETT - - 300,300,000 30,030
At 31 March R=A=+—8 600,600,000 60,0600 600,600,000 60,060
RESERVES 27 (#E

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 92
and 93.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC rules and regulations,
certain subsidiaries of the Company are required to appropriate
certain percentage of their profits after tax to the respective
statutory reserves. Subject to certain restrictions as set out in the
relevant PRC regulations, this statutory reserve may be used to
reduce any losses incurred or for capitalisation as paid-up
capital of the PRC subsidiary.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the ordinary shares and share premium
account of the group companies acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) on 22 March 2000, over
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
thereof.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represented contribution surplus made by
the then shareholders to certain subsidiaries of the Company
before the group reorganisation on 22 March 2000.

AEM EEEDHERRER2RBELE
AMHEBE -

EEMEE

BYBEEERUERY - ARRETHE AR
ARSAOEERBHR  SRARHERE
MZERETEDL - REBEBETEBRIZE
TR ZEERBAEMTEMEARES
ZEAERKBIESBRRAEARL -

BOHAE

AEEZAHRBEATBRZEEERER
ERERF=-A+-AzEEEATEADK
BEBEXBRRELZBRMEERZZ8 @ it
ERBBAERBRZ ARRE BTN 2HE

B EE
BEAREBERN_SETFE-_A_+T_HAKEE
HRERBRRGARRETHBAR 2 HER
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28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(@)

Cash flows from operations

Profit before income tax

Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Finance income

Fair value gain on investment properties
Provision/(reversal of provision) for

inventory obsolescence

Write-back of provision for impaired

receivables

Loss on disposal of property, plant and

equipment
Loss on forward contracts
Depreciation

Operating profit before working capital

changes
Inventories

Trade, retention and other receivables

Trade and other payables,

provision and receipts in advance

Cash generated from operations

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i
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28 WeER=EER
@ CEELZRLSHE

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
B P 15850 A1 53,582 50,403
BTHIEIERE
B TS RRAR 897 1,005
U A ON (99) (619)
WEMEQLBERE (3,400) (4,300)
BT ERE (BEED)
1,046 (1,525)
B (B FE U SR B s )
(233) (4,530)
EEYE - BEREEZER
1,652 296
REA KRR - 1,517
e 10,305 10,665
EEESEHR LB RET
63,750 52,912
ey (23,124) (14,012)
FEMAR TR~ FEUS AR BB 3R T ELAth LKL R (39,970) 23,824
JRE AT B R e EAth AT R
BB RTBUGRIA 11,085 (18,118)
KEEEZRS 11,741 44 606
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28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (coNT'D) 28 BHanEER @
(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment (b) HEWE BERRBZAERE
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from REEARERERA HEVE  BE
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise: KRB TS FIARLE -
2018 2017
—B—N\E T %
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Net book amount (note 16) BREDFE (st 16) 1,652 296
Loss on disposal of property, plantand  H&%W% - BE Kk &E2EE(HE7)
equipment (note 7) (1,652) (296)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEME - BERREZBEHRIE
plant and equipment - —
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial activities © LRIDELANERBYE
Borrowings
&
HK$'000
FET
As at 1 April 2016 R-ZZE—XEMNA—H 58,851
Cash flows Remne (20,736)
As at 31 March 2017 R-ZE—+F=F=+—H 38,115
Cash flows BehE 3,267
As at 31 March 2018 R-ZE—-N\FE=A=+—H 41,382
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29 CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS IN PROGRESS 29 HEIREEH
2018 2017
—E-)N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
The aggregate cost incurred and recognised &4 & & 4 4R I B R
profits (less recognised losses) to date CREmZER) 233,306 149,316
Less: progress billings B EEAR (220,317) (158,462)
Net financial position for ongoing contracts IR{T4 %12 FH ik 12,989 (9,146)
Included in current assets/(liabilities) AARBEE,/(BE)ZEBEWNT :
are the following:
Amounts due from customers for MR P2 AR TR
contract work 15,277 2,596
Amounts due to customers for contract work B &5 2 &4 4 TI2IRR (2,288) (11,742)
Net financial position for ongoing contracts 3174 42 F 8 #A0n 12,989 (9,146)
30 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 30 MEMERIE
(@) Operating lease commitments — group company as (@ EEESERE— KEAIFFEREEA
lessee
As at 31 March 2018, the Group had future aggregate RZFB-N\FZA=+—H ARER
minimum lease payments under non- cancellable B A 2 T R T T E M A
operating leases in respect of land and buildings as AR ZHEEEN @A T :
follows:
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —ET—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTRT FET
Within one year —&ER 46,686 35,193
In the second to fifth year inclusive E-EFEEREN(AESRMTE) 101,696 14,061
More than five years ZRAF 17,199 -
165,581 49,254

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #&BEHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 BEZE=Z—NF=ZA=+—-HLFE

30 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (cONT'D) 30 RMEMEARE®)
(b) Operating lease commitments — group company as (b) KEHERE —KEQFERHEA
lessor
As at 31 March 2018, the Group had future aggregate RZEBE-NF=ZRA=+—H KXEEIR
minimum lease receivable under non-cancellable BRI RENEREHEMN KR
operating leases in respect of investment properties as KW EEE M FRABENT
follows:
2018 2017
—Z2-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Within one year —FER 350 840
In the second to fifth year inclusive S FEEREN(BESRRE) - 350
350 1,190
31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31 HAERE
As at 31 March 2018, performance bonds of approximately RZE—N\FE=A=+—H KAEEDREF
HK$20,748,000 (2017: HK$23,031,000) have been issued by BEHELIRFL20,748,000 87 (—F—H4F ¢
the Group to customers as security of contracts. Restricted cash 23,031,000 B L) ERAKER - HhXRHE
of HK$3,008,000 (2017: HK$2,981,000) was held as security 17 % 3,008,000 7T ( —F — + 4 : 2,981,000
for the performance bonds. BT0) FHERARE ZJEIR ©
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 BEALRS
In addition to the transactions/information disclosed elsewhere RIFEMBREABEE 2R S, BRI RAE
in these consolidated financial statements, during the year, the FEAN AEBEGEAEALETUTRS

Group had the following transactions with related parties:

(@) Related party relationship Nature of transaction 2018 2017
BEALEE XEHUAE —B-N\F I
HK$’000 HK$’000

B FET

A company under common control of ~ Rental expenses paid to
certain directors of the Company (note)  Negotiator Consultants

—HARARBETESFHRZERZ AR Limited (“NCL")
(BF&E) S 5 F Negotiator Consultants Limited
(INCLD) 2 &R 2,820 2,820
Note: NCL is a company in which Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE Sun Mz : NCLRARBESREHIELE - HHESL
Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, s BTEEERBERS ARG TSR
directors of the Company, have beneficial interests. The rental HWZAF BERAXERTEBREDIZ
expenses were paid in the normal course of business at terms AEBENCLEAREE Z KA -

mutually agreed between the Group and NCL.

(b) Balances with related parties (b)) BEALTZ#HE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$"000
TR FET
Other receivables from H At FE U R

— NCL — NCL 255 255
Balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on RHRREER RS RAREREN -
demand. The carrying amounts approximate their fair REERAARERE(ZF—LF: —

values (2017: same). B0 o

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i 1 55
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33

U

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##&BEHRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #HZ=Z-NF=A=+-BLEE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

AS AT 31 MARCH 2018

ASSETS
Non-current asset
Interest in subsidiaries

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Other receivables

Current income tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Other payables

Current income tax liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Total equity and liabilities

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2018 and were

signed on its behalf.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
i # &
Director

EF

BE
FRBEE
YN 2

RBEE
JRE M5 PR B8 2 R IR
Ho At fE YR

A E A HR PSR
REPREFEY

R
RAFFEEEGER

[N
i

R

&fE&

RBAE

H B3R
AHMREHRARE
FERTPH 8 A B0 IR

XL aGEes

33 ARRBIMBARK N EE

R-ZEBE—-NF=ZA=+—8H

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E—+tF

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
=3 Fax FAT
90,918 90,918

118,314 116,621

25 25

- 351

581 481

118,920 117,478

209,838 208,396

60,060 60,060

(@) 65,189 85,127
125,249 145,187

2,489 2,825

116 -

81,984 60,384

... 84589 63,209
209,838 208,396

ARAPBRAKXKECKEFENR T /\FX
AZtEBH#E LR TIEEAREE -

TSE Sun Po, Tony
i
Director

EF
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33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONT'D)

Note:

(@) Reserve movement of the Company

At 1 April 2016

Profit for the year

Issue of bonus shares (note 26)
Dividends (note 14(a))

At 31 March 2017

At 1 April 2017
Profit for the year
Dividends (note 14(a))

At 31 March 2018

T F6 47 42 e AT PR W] % — AR AR i

RZE—RFMA—AH
FEm T

AT R& 1T (MH7E 26)

f& 2 (HiEE14)

R-Z—tH=A=+—8
RZZE—+tFWMA—H
FEm T

&2 (HiEE14()

R=B-NF=ZA=+-—H

FE 2T BBHET
Go the Extra Mile

33 ARAEMBHRRR LFEES @)

GEE

@  AATREED

Share Retained

premium earnings Total
B EE REER &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FiEx FiEx FET
29,427 75,182 104,609
- 61,599 61,599
(29,427) (603) (30,030)
- (51,051) (51,051)

- 85,127 85,127

- 85,127 85,127

- 1,083 1,083
- (21,021) (21,021)

- 65,189 65,189
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Five-Year Financial Summary ESH¥EHE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E2-N\F =T—tF ZT—FRF ET—RHF T—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET THET TET FET FET
Results S
Profit attributable to equity KRARIIBEE
holders of the Company FEAG 4 A
44,194 42,307 78,377 65,910 9,019
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ZB-N\E —T—+F ZT-RF T-HF T-HNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTRT TET THET T FET
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Total assets wEE 656,011 582,865 613,998 600,890 506,904
Total liabilities BaE (176,800)  (151,001) (189,163) (212,011) (183,259
Shareholders’ equity IR A 479,211 431,864 424,835 388,879 323,645

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the five A&EEHZ=-T—/\F=ZA=-+—AHILAEFES
years ended 31 March 2018 have been prepared on a consolidated &2 ¥4 - EERBE Y REAEERFRE -
basis.
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